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Corporate Information

NAEIEM

CORPORATE PROFILE

Merry Garden Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a leisure wooden
product enterprise in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
over 20 years of experience in production and sales of leisure
household products and timber houses and their related parts and
structures. The Company has established its sales network through
distributors as well as its self-operated retail stores network, and has
launched a series of leisure wooden products to promote a leisure
and natural lifestyle. The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wu Qingshan
Ms. Xie Qingmei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway (appointed on 16 July 2014)
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi
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Corporate Information (continved)

NG

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Wai Lun, crPa

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Mr. Wong Wai Lun

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Eversheds

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Zhangping Branch
China Construction Bank, Zhangping Branch
Bank of China, Zhangping Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 2702

China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Fushan Industrial District
Zhangping, Fuijian, the PRC
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Corporate Information (contined)

NGl

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.merrygardenholdings.com

STOCK CODE
1237
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111
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Highlights for the Year
FERME

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EXCLUDING
GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIES AND GAIN

TURNOVER FOR THE YEAR FROM LAND RESUMPTION
REEERRE TEIEBUEH R R L 3 W & Wi 2 &F Rz Al
RMB701.2 millon RMB80.2 million
AR 7012 BB AR¥ 802 BET

147.6% ?8.3%

May 2014

March 2014 g

—Z2—-m¥=A

February 2014

—2—N¥E_A

Being selected as National

Online business platform for garden products in New biomass energy business Key Leading Enterprise of
the United States commenced operation commenced production the Forestry Industry
RER BEEEREHTERBEE EME IR EB RS IRE BEBERME B REARE

July 2014 December 2014
—F—HFtA October 2014 —E—mE+=B
—2—mE+A
Strategic cooperation with Hanergy Jointly arranged the “2014 China Wooden Structures
Indoor furniture (HKEx stock code: 566) in developing Industry Forum” with China Academy of Forestry
online flagship store new smart timber villa products and | HEIFRBIMEREE M [ —T—MFBEARGEBEELERE
on Tmall wooden products with thin-film EERE
commenced photovoltaic components
operation EFERE (B RER : 566) BIESA1ELR Construction commenced for Phase Il production
RS 2 ERRIBLR RS REREREER - HE facilities
R EE B RAB R Em FoHEERMEE T

EZEZEZREMRDE 5
T -FEFER



Financial Summary

MR E

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (frAHHE TN + UAREFITITR)
Year ended 31 December
Profitability data and ratios BIHNERLLE #FE+—-_A=1+—HIEE
2014 2013
—E—mE T—=fF
Turnover e 701,231 475,051
Timber houses and their related parts KRE N E RIS M 1
and structures 327,466 205,916
Leisure household products REREE®R
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIEEM 116,302 90,323
Recreational products TSR E T 52,117 61,841
Landscape garden products EEHED 39,809 40,047
Pet-home designs EEVEE M 11,139 22,183
Trading of timber MBS 137,897 54,741
Renewable energy products BAREREMR 16,501 -
Gross profit EF 178,413 151,734
Gross profit margin E = 25.4% 31.9%
Net profit pial 90,810 124,421
Net profit margin Y Al & 13.0% 26.2%
Earnings per share (RMB) FERAEF(ARET) 0.08 0.12
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MERABER L E 2014 2013
—S—MmE —=— _E
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—
Non-current assets EmEBEE 401,076 308,228
Current assets BB E 880,656 498,830
Current liabilities mEAE 395,416 285,284
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 88,974 44,602
Equity attributable to equity shareholders 1 %5 % 58 fE {5 & 2K 797,342 477172
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENEL R (Kt 1) 2.2:1 1.7:1
Quick ratio (Note 2) WENLL R (Mt 2) 1.5:1 1.1:1
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FERERE (HiF3)(K) 171 149
Trade receivables turnover days NSNS
(Note 4) (days) (B 4)(R) 68 85
Turnover days on prepayment for R EFEN SRS R E (HaE5) (R
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 29 29
Total borrowings to total assets (Note 6) (& E4@sEE L EE LK (f176) 32.2% 32.8%
Net borrowings to total equity (Note 7) EEFmagER = (Kt 7) 17.5% 25.4%

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014




Financial Summary continved
B RS

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (S HETIN + UAREFILIT)

Year ended 31 December

Operational data EEEE BF+-_A=Z+—HILLEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE =
Staff costs BT 33,823 29,120
Capital expenditures e 105,550 136,076
Research and development costs B B AR 28,894 19,572
Effect tax rate (Note 8) BT E (M5 8) 16.8% 20.9%

Notes:

Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities.

Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by
current liabilities.

Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days.

Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade receivables
(excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days.

Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average
prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs,
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting
value by 365 days.

Total borrowings to total assets is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans
and interest-bearing borrowings by total assets.

Net borrowings to total equity is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans and
interest-bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits

by total equity.

Effective tax rate is calculated as income tax divided by profit before taxation.
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Financial Summary continved
B RS

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (S HETIN - UAREFILIT)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the

Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

RESBESIRT

ARESIAEMBRFEZREREE  BER

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_BA=1+—HILEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—mE —E-=F —T-CF —T——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBF T ARBEFT ARBEFT ARBFT
Turnover EER 701,231 475,051 421,171 307,151 199,603
Cost of sales eER A (522,818) (323,317) (272,461) (195,247) (127,719)
Gross profit EF 178,413 151,734 148,710 111,904 71,884
Other revenue E bl 17,888 23,070 11,761 3,504 3,073
Other net gain/(loss) Hipdezs, (&E) 2,172 48,683 (780) (1,686) 1,924
Selling and distribution HE RS HAX
expenses (21,714) (13,818) (10,146) (9,233) (5,495)
Administrative expenses  17EBI (56,279) (46,979) (47,169) (19,653) (6,663)
Profit from operations Fed=ngl| 120,480 162,690 102,376 84,836 64,723
Finance costs BERK AR (11,326) (5,463) (5,620 (3,759 (1,293)
Profit before taxation A AR A 109,154 157,227 96,756 81,077 63,430
Income tax Fia R (18,344) (32,806) (16,665) (10,370) (10,298)
Profit for the year F R F 90,810 124,421 80,091 70,707 53,132
Earnings per share BREM — EXR
— Basic and diluted BE(ARE)
(RMB) 0.08 0.12 0.09 0.09 0.06
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BEkER
As at 31 December
»+=-—A=+—~H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—Z-mE —T-=F —T--fF —E-—F5 ZZ-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETTT ARETF T ARETFT ARETTT
Total Assets BERE 1,281,732 807,058 535,773 282,412 189,616
Total Liabilities BlEEE 484,390 329,886 173,532 135,818 115,266
Total Equity B 797,342 477172 362,241 146,594 74,350
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Chairman’s Statement

T EWRE

Dear Valued Shareholders,

2014 represents the second year since the listing of the Company, as
well as the year of numerous significant developments. On behalf of
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to
present you the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, turnover of the Group amounted to RMB701.2
million, represented a 47.6% increase as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2013 (“Year 2013”), thanks to the significant
growth of the Chinese and North American market and the expansion
of the timber trading business. Profit attributable to shareholders of
the Group during the Year amounted to RMB90.8 million, down by
27.0%, which was a result of the gain from land resumption
amounted to RMB44.8 million being accounted for in Year 2013.
Excluding the after tax effect of gain from land resumption and
government subsidies, profit during the Year increased to RMB80.2
million or by 8.3% as compared with Year 2013. The Board
recommended a final dividend of HK$0.005 per share for the Year.
The Board also proposed a bonus issue of one share for every 100
shares held by shareholders.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The development of the global economy has become more
complicated in 2014. To tackle the challenges from the global
markets to which the Group has faced, the Group has adopted a
vigorous and flexible strategy. New businesses have been actively
explored while our market and product portfolio has been strategically
adjusted.

During the Year, the housing market of the United States of America
(the “US”) has revealed a trend with continuously improvement.
According to the Department of Commerce of the US, during the
calendar year of 2014, new housing starts has reached 1.01 million, a
new height since 2007. A corresponding growth has been shown in
the market of timber houses and construction materials, driven up the
Group’s business in the North America, with an increase in turnover
by 48.2%

BN EHHIR

“E-NERARRIBE ETHE_F - FER
BREZERERN—F - AABRKRARAESR
([EFg]) MANBZHREZARF REM
BRA(AEEDHEE-_T—NF+=_A=+—
BIEERE(AFE])MEE -

M RIA

RAFE  AEENEEBAARKE7012BE
BT+ A+ —BAIFEE( ==
—=FEERAT6% FTEERFERIED
SR RESARAME S EBIEARFTE - AF
EEREHNRREORFAAREISEET &
EFERDP27.0% FEHR T —=FEFEH
TR AR 44.8 5B ITHTE » Bk it
Wi s BT RE R 2 218 - AF i A
BT =FEERS3%EARKES2HET -
EEFSEFZREANFENRAREFNR0.005%
T BEEENEZUTH —aRBROEE AR
2 EAER R FIR AL -

RBRR
2RNEBERE_T—NESER  AEUA
EER2RETHAABONE - ARERET
WS - BANBLRE - ERZERRDBEA
RS - MEHEHET -
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THRENERAE BEEEBHRM =
—FERF FERINI0I B8R B =2ZT
CFURRE - ERAARE RIEM IS IR 215
R HHEEEIEEEBOER  SEEREF
R 48.2% °
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Since the “Beautiful China” concept has first been announced during
the 18th National Congress of the Communist Party of China in 2012,
which promotes eco-logical and civilised infrastructures, the
urbanisation and tourism industry of China has been undergoing
tremendous change. During the Year, the State Council has issued
“The New Model of National Urbanisation Planning (2014-2020)” and
“The Opinion from The State Council in relation the Promotion of
Revolution and Development of the Tourism Industry”, which detailed
the future development of urbanisation and tourism industry of China.
Benefited from the relevant policies, the domestic business of the
Group has also shown a significant growth, with an increase in
turnover by 68.8%

However, gross profit margin of the Group has been squeezed by the
rapid competition in both the domestic and overseas markets
together with the surge in manufacturing costs. During the Year, the
overall gross profit margin of the Group was 25.4%, which is 6.5%
point lower than last year. The Group has been adjusting its client and
product portfolio in order to stabilise the gross profit margin.
Nevertheless, the Group has actively developing new businesses. The
renewable energy business which commenced production during the
Year has enabled the Group to utilise its raw materials more efficiently
and has brought a new stream of revenue to the Group. During the
Year, the renewable energy business has brought the Group with
turnover of RMB16.5 million and profit of RMB3.5 million.

During the Year, the Group has also been investing on its online
business platforms. The Group has established its online retail
websites in the China and the US, and has been in full operation.

BRI FRHBEREEF T AZBERE
REFRHRBL [EREBRE] 282 K5
RIS - REBIM IR L KR BEAE B
BETEREL - AFE - HHRD 515 T
KA SR AR B (2014-2020 4 ) ) MK B 75 B R
REEREXRNSHRNETER)  BEHKS
PEIR R IR EEMARRER - XEREA
BERHES  AFEBRANEBIREFREEY
R EEERAFIERE8.8% °

A REBERINTSHREREUAREEKE
ERERSFE  NEENEFEZI—FE
N o RNFE - REBNKEENER254% &
EFTHR65ENH - AEECEBARRTL R
EmAE  BEEME - WIN  REBIERE
RER - AEBMNBELERESHRATEER
RE  CEEEEARMBEME - ANREE
ERFIMATR - ZEE - BEEREFAEE
HRARKE1GSBEBTEEREURARKISE
BILHEH o

RAEE  XEENREGHDEERTE - A&
EEoRETEEEEAREDTEMS - X
EEEAESLF -
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PROSPECTS

The economy of the US has shown continuous improvement,
accompanied with higher new housing starts, the housing market of
the US will be driven up with continuous growth. Currently, market of
the home building materials in the US reached US$3 trillion.
According to the forecast from the US Home Improvement Research
Institute, the home building materials industry is expected to grow
strongly in the coming three years. The Group will get hold of the
opportunities from the North American and European markets, to
expand our direct sales and distribution network internationally
through potential merger and acquisition for the further expansion of
our share in the international markets.

Domestically, the new model of urbanisation and the revolution to the
tourism industry which have been promoted by the PRC government
is expected to create a magnificent market. With the expectation from
the PRC government that the urbanisation process will attract RMB40
trillion of investment over the next 10 years, while the revenue from
domestic tourism shall reach RMB5.5 trillion by 2020, a market with
rapid growth is indicated. The Group will focus on developing one-
stop service on leisure tourism facilities, with an emphasis on the
businesses and investment opportunities related to the “Beautiful
China” campaign led by the PRC government.

The globalised e-commerce represents a new opportunity to the
Group. The Group will utilise its online platforms, in order to further
expand our business coverage to the end users globally, and to bring
our “Merry Garden” brand to the world.

The Group will continue to optimise its technologies in wood
modification. Through our research and development on technologies
and applications, we will make application of the most advanced
wood modification technologies (such as anti-corrosive and fire-
retardant processing and radiation processing) to the Group’s
products, making the Group’s products more environmental friendly,
higher value-added and unique. In addition, the continued
development of our biomass energy business will not only enhance
our production efficiency, but also lead the Group to the magnificent
market of new energies in the PRC.

RE

BEXBERLERESRS  ENTEREE £
SEE BB E A KK EEM T 50 R E
B XEXEEVOMSRREIBESE
T BEERERERRIHEE - EETRD
=Fd REEMTESFHERFEBER - A&
B EEIL R REMN N TISHE - BEEEWE
AHE  ERERBEREEND HEK  E—
FERAEE ZBRTIS0E -

FEBA o BT R AR B e # R SR L AR B A
KR ENESFERE RN - HEBTE
AR ESRECERBERFIOFUBARKE
WEBEIRE M -Z2-ZF - FAKEIKRE
HOBBRBENARBSLEEIT BrITER
BEAEREER - NEEK IR REAKRREIK
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BZXBEHTE] e zEXER LHEEE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EREHE

The Third Phase production facilities which is expected to be in use
and commenced operations in 2015 will utilise the state of the art
production technologies for new and high value-added products.
Accompanied by the advanced residual materials collection facilities
for the production of renewable energy products, production
efficiency and returns will be significantly improved. Such facilities will
bring the Group additional 40% production capacity to cope with the
significant market demand.

The Group will adopt an active and flexible strategy, to ensure the
stable growth of the Group with a faster pace and to build up an
ecological and environmentally-friendly leisure lifestyle.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the year.

Wu Zheyan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

KR -_F-—RAFEEREERZE=ZHLEER
I - WERM AR EERM  RAEENE R
S INEER LA FENTARYE DR
TEBLRRER £ SRSLEEME LD
o ZERIEH RAREILINA0% WERRE -
IARES T IZH)REAE K o
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REFAEEFRERER - WAREOARYH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R am B AT

RESULTS OF OPERATION

The year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”) represented a year of
significant developments of the Group. With our solid foundation on
export business, a strengthened domestic retail business, a newly
established timber trading business as well as the new biomass
energy business, benefited by the gradually improved economy in the
US, and the supportive policies on urbanisation and tourism in the
PRC, vigorous market demand has shaped the growth of the Group.
Accompanied by the corresponding increase in the Group’s overall
production capacity, turnover for the Year increased by 47.6% to
RMB701.2 million (2013: RMB475.1 million).

Profit for the Year decreased by 27.0% to RMB90.8 million (2013:
RMB124.4 million). Taken out the after tax effect of the gain on land
resumption and government subsidies being recognised in 2013,
profit for the Year increased by 8.3% to RMB80.2 million (2013:
RMB74.0 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommended a
final dividend of HK$0.005 (2013: HK$0.013 per share).

BONUS ISSUE

The Board recommended that bonus shares will be issued on the
basis of one bonus share for every 100 Shares held to shareholders.

REXE
—E-NFT AT RALFE(AFE]DR
REBERERN—F - ZMSBEEROLO
5% FEa(tMBEANTEER  FENAME
DEBAREMENERES - BXEREEL
EHER S E - DA R B SR R AR B EE S Y
TR AYMTISEKER T AEEMNK
R RAEAEEGEERNBELM  AFER
EEHEERITNEAREOI2EET(ZZ
—=%F: ARKE4751EET) °

FRHEMTE27.0%EARKEQEEHEEL(ZZ
— =% ARB1244BE8D) - WHBR_T—=
FREABNBRIE T U RS R BRFHE 2 &
2 FRGHHEESINEARKS02EEL(Z
T—=F: ARB7408ETT) °

BE
ARREZS ((EE2E ) B2 REREAETRE
#0.00570 (ZZ—=4F : FIRBH0.0137T) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis continved)
faras é é/_\ /_\ \ po=g
B E DT

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ O E
Our business eSS ES S

Timber houses and related
parts and structures

NE RARREER (R

Recreational products Outdoor and indoor furniture

Landscape garden products

R AE T ZERIMRIBER EERER

Pet-home designs Trading of timber Renewable energy products

EMEEM AHE 5 BARLREmR

—

OEM/ODM

Mode of sales o
S5t 2. Self-owned brand “Merry Garden” B 5 @& EEZRE |
R 3. Trading &

Customers B F &t
End-users (through Retailers / Distributors Trading companies
self-owned retail Home Improvement and other
outlets and online sales) Centres manufacturers
KimfEAE ZER/ S EHE = VNCIDSS
(BRBEERELHE) RIBEHE HAh A ER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BB HEDH -

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as
follows:

Segment revenue
derived from external

E O
) #B [B1 A

RAEE  BRPISKLED T ZRRWAT ¢

% to total segment

revenue derived from  Reportable segment

customers Change  external customers profit/(loss) (Note 1)
{ERFERMBERZ DES Sk
FEEMBERCH BE -] SBREESL & (ER) (1)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mE -—T-=F% ~E-mE -—T-=F ZB3-MF -—T-=F%
RMB’000  RMB'000 % % % RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT B B otk ARWTFR ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALR
of wooden products 659,016 465,830 41.5% 94.0% 98.0% 84,721 82,164
Retail business TEEH 24,245 8,356 190.2% 3.5% 1.8% 1,290 (4,384)
Projects of outdoor wooden
products EIREGIER 1,469 865 69.8% 0.2% 0.2% 59 (193)
Manufacturing and sales of EERHE N/A N/A
renewable energy products BERRER 16,501 - iyl 2.3% TEA 3,496 -
701,231 475,051 100.0% 100.0% 89,566 77,587

During the Year, the Group continued to consolidating its core
business, including the manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
retail business and projects of outdoor wooden products. In March
2014, the Group’s new renewable energy business has also
commenced operations. The turnover contributions from the above
four segments of the Group represented 94.0%, 3.5%, 0.2% and
2.3% of the total turnover of the Year (2013: 98.0%, 1.8%, 0.2% and
Nil). Profit contribution from each segment to total reportable segment
profit for the Year were 94.6%, 1.4%, 0.1% and 3.9% respectively,
while the segment of retail business and projects of outdoor wooden
products has recorded a turn from loss to profit 2014.

Note 1: Segment profit/(loss) has excluded the after tax effect of government

subsidiaries and land resumption.
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Vanagement Discussion and Analysis contined

EEE R -

The segment of manufacturing and sales of wooden products
remains the largest segment of the Group. The turnover from such
segment has increased by 41.5% as compared with 2013, thanks to
the increased demand from the overseas as well as the domestic
market.

The Group’s self-owned brand, “Merry Garden” is engaged in the
retailing of a series of leisure household products. Since its
establishment in 2010, its sales network covered the major cities in
more than 10 provinces in the PRC with over 60 self-operated stores
and distribution outlets. In early 2014, we launched our new self-
owned brand in the US market and commenced online sales
business through our website. In July 2014, the Group revamped its
online sales platform on T-mall and tailor-made its interfaces for
different product range. With the self-owned brand business becomes
matured, the results of the retail business segment has been
significantly improved. During the Year, turnover from the retalil
business segment surged by 190.2% to RMB24.2 million (2013:
RMB8.4 million), and has shown a turn from loss to a profit of
RMB1.3 million (2013: loss of RMB4.4 million).

The new segment of renewable energy products, which commenced
operations and in full production in March 2014 and the second half
of 2014 respectively, had recorded a turnover of RMB16.5 million and
a profit of RMB3.5 million respectively. This segment recycles the
residues, such as sawdust produced during the production process
of wooden products, and turn them into biomass pellet fuels, which is
one of the most important national development directions on new
energies in the PRC. Along with the increase in overall production
capacities of the Group, a corresponding increase in the scale of
renewable energy business is expected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis centined

SR EAREDH -

Market review

During the Year, the distribution of turnover from our global markets

are as follows:

America
Bl
35%

M35 0B

RAFE  BHMKBEHETHEIEXRDMN

Asia Pacific \

(Exclusive of the PRC)

EAE
(FEFEPE)
3%
‘.
Turnover % to total turnover
- 3 HHREEHASH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mE T4 —E—mE T4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT AR®TT AREFT
The PRC 2] 390,886 231,616 56% 49%
North America BIE 244,737 165,141 35% 35%
Europe B 43,314 30,205 6% 6%
Asia Pacific Eiy N

(Exclusive of the PRC) (TEIERE) 22,294 48,089 3% 10%
701,231 475,051 100% 100%
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Vanagement Discussion and Analysis contined

EEE R -

The Group strategically positions itself “to align with the trend of
Chinese tourism and leisure market and to capture the opportunity
arisen from the recovery of the US and Europe’s property market”,
with a vision to capture every opportunity from the market and to
bring the Group with stable development at a faster pace.

The PRC is the largest market of the Group. During the Year, turnover
from the PRC market has grown by 68.8% to RMB390.9 million
(2013: RMB231.6 million), represented 56% (2013: 49%) of total
turnover. Such growth was a result of the vigorous development of
the Chinese tourism industry and urbanisation, which in turns pull up
the demand for the Group’s products. According to the statistics
from the National Tourism Administration, total accumulated revenue
for the domestic tourism industry in 2013 reached RMB2.6 trillion, at
the meantime, the rate of urbanisation has also reached 53.73%,
which has been growing rapidly. Nevertheless, the Group’s self-
owned brand retail business has also been expanding gradually,
which contributed to the growth in turnover.

According to the US Department of Commerce, in the year of 2014,
new housing starts has reached 1.01 million units, which was among
the highest since 2007, as well as the fourth consecutive year of
growth. Nevertheless, the economic growth of the US economy in
2014 has reached 2.4%, a new peak from the last four years. As a
result of the continuously growing housing market as well as the
economy in the US, the demand for the Group’s timber houses
structures products has been stimulated. This has brought the growth
in the Group’s turnover from the North American market by 48.2% to
RMB244.7 million) (2013: RMB165.1 million), representing 35%
(2013: 35%) of total turnover.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BB REDT -

During the Year, the Group’s turnover from Europe has also grown by
43.4% to RMB43.3 million (2013: RMB30.2 million). Germany was
the major market of the Group in Europe. According to statistics from
The Federal Statistical Office of Germany, the gross domestic
products of Germany in 2014 has grown by 1.5%, which is above the
expectation of 1.2% as well as the fastest growth since 2011.
Domestic consumptions has also jumped by 1.1%, which indicates
the solid performance of the overall German economy. The growth in
employment rate, increase in salaries and expanded domestic
spending has pull up the demand of the Group’s products from the
German market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and gross profit margin by product
category

Turnover
1]
2014 2013
Zg-mE —T-=F

RMB‘000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARKTI

RAFE AEBRABMNZEEXBHER
4134%EANRBEASIEEL(ZE—=F: AR
302858  BEERAEEAERMOERS
Ho BEBRBARTRAGHNRA;EHE =
—FEEENEERBERR1.5% BHRL
JEETRI1.2% » BT ——FARRREER -
RHEBMER11% B EREBELERAE
cREEEEBEARELN  BITERS -
EBEA TS TEEMSHAEEERN

Bt 75 O R
LSERBANMENK(RERDEED)

% to total turnover Gross margin
iREREasl Ef®
Change 2014 2013 2014 2013

29 Z8-mF -T--% ZB-MF -—T-=F%

% % % % %

B E:1:4 Bok h:0:4 B

Timber houses and their REREIEREH
related parts and structures LiEH 327,466 205,916 59.0% 46.7% 43.4% 25.5% 34.7%
Leisure household products ~ HhEHIEES
Outdoor and indoor furnitures ~ ERSMFEE S 116,302 90,323 28.8% 16.6% 19.0% 36.8% 37.8%
Recreational products HFEEBER 52,117 61,841 (15.7%) 7.4% 13.0% 34.4% 34.4%
Landscape garden products BEEBER 39,809 40,047 (0.6%) 5.7% 8.4% 33.0% 30.8%
Pet-home designs ENEEM 11,139 22,183 (49.8%) 1.6% 4.7% 34.8% 38.5%
Trading of timber AMES 137,897 54,741 151.9% 19.7% 11.5% 5.3% 7.0%
Renewable energy products ~ BAELBRESR 16,501 - NATER 2.3% NATEAR 60.3% N/ATEA
Total @it 701,231 475051  47.6%  100.0%  100.0%  254%  31.9%




Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BB RED T

In terms of product category, sales of timber houses and their related
parts and structures remained as the largest income stream of the
Group. It is also the main driver for the growth in turnover for the
Year. Turnover from such products surged by 59.0% to RMB327.5
million, representing 46.7% (2013: 43.4%) of total turnover for the
Year. However, owing to the significant devaluation of the currencies
of our major overseas competitors against US dollar, resulting rapid
market competition, additional cost has been incurred for product
modification in order to maintain stable product pricing and overall
competitiveness of the Group, the overall gross margin from such
products dropped by 9.2% point. The overall turnover from leisure
household products was similar to that of 2013, while the overall
gross margin has also remained stable.

During the Year, the Group has been actively developing its domestic
timber trading business through its network with the domestic timber
industry and overseas timber suppliers and by bulk purchase and
price competitiveness. Such business represents another stable
revenue streams of the Group.

The new renewable energy business of the Group has generated a
turnover of RMB16.5 million during the Year, with a gross margin of
60.3%, which represents another important new source of income for
the Group.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased to RMB17.9 million for the Year from
RMB23.1 million for 2013 as a result of the recognition of deferred
government subsidies of RMB4.5 million in 2013 upon land
resumption.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

B2 RS I

Other net gain

The Group recorded other net gain of RMB2.2 million for the Year
(2013: RMB48.7 million). The decrease was primarily a result of the
recognition of gain from land resumption amounted to RMB44.8
million in 2013.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses during the Year was RMB21.7
million (2013: RMB13.8 million). The increase was primarily due to the
increase in transportation charges and port charges along with the
increase in sales and expansion in timber trading business.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased to RMB56.3 million during the
Year (2013: RMB47.0 million), which is a result of the increase in staff
costs and research and development costs.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased to RMB11.3 million during the Year
(2013: RMB5.5 million), which was mainly due to the increase in bank
and other interest-bearing borrowings during the Year as a result of
the continuous expansion of business operation.

Income tax

Our income tax reached RMB18.3 million (2013: RMB32.8 million),
primarily due to the decrease in overall taxable profits of the Group.
Zhangping Kimura is qualified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise, and it is entitled to the preferential corporate income tax
rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015. Effective tax rate decreased to
16.8% for the Year (2013: 20.9%) as the gain from land resumption
recognised in 2013 was charged at the standard corporate income
tax rate of 25%.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit for the Year decreased by
27.0% to RMB90.8 million (2013: RMB124.4 million). Profit for the
year excluding the after tax effect of gain from land resumption and
government subsidies increased by 8.3% to RMB80.2 million (2013:
RMB74.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

BB RED T

Dividend

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.005 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.004) per share for the Year (2013: HK$0.013
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.0103)).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current assets
of RMB880.7 million (31 December 2013: RMB498.8 million), of
which bank deposits and cash (including pledged deposits) were
RMB273.4 million (31 December 2013: RMB143.7 million). To better
manage our funds, the Group’s cash is generally deposited with
banks and denominated mostly in RMB and US$. As at 31 December
2014, total available banking facilities of the Group amounted to
RMB555.0 million (31 December 2013: RMB489.3 million), banking
facilities utilised as at 31 December 2014 were RMB397.3 million (31
December 2013: RMB264.7 million) and these bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and US$.

As at 31 December 2014, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 32.2% and
17.5% respectively (31 December 2013: 32.8% and 25.4%
respectively), current ratio and quick ratio were 2.2:1 and 1.5:1
respectively (31 December 2013: 1.7:1 and 1.1:1 respectively).

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged its plant and
machinery, lease prepayments and buildings held for own use with
net book value of RMB193.6 million (31 December 2013: RMB114.6
million) and deposits with banks of RMB99.3 million (31 December
2013: RMB68.6 million) mainly for the purpose of securing bank loans
and financial derivative contracts issued by banks to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied
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Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB105.6 million (2013:
RMB136.1 million).

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 29(a) of the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant capital commitments for the
Group.

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at 31
December 2014,

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, there was no significant investment, material
acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group
currently has no other plan to make any substantial investment in or
acquisition of capital assets, but will seek for potential opportunities of
acquisitions according to development needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

EME HED

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in US$ and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. The gross profit margin would be affected if RMB appreciates
against US$ as the Group might not be able to reflect the
appreciation in selling prices to overseas customers that were
determined in US$. In response to this, the Group manages the
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against US$ by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts denominated in US$ with banks
when sales contracts were entered with overseas customers. As at
31 December 2014, the Group has net outstanding US$
denominated forward foreign currency contracts of US$20.6 million
(31 December 2013: US$19.1 million). All the contracts are to be
settled within one year.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages the foreign exchange risks by matching the cash inflow
from our export sales denominated in US$ with the cash outflow from
our import of timber denominated in US$.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING AND PLACING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global
offering were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). The net
proceeds from the issue of new shares under the June 2014
Placement and October 2014 Placement, after deducting related
transaction costs, were HK$155.0 million and HK$148.0 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied
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As at 31 December 2014, all the unutilised proceeds were deposited W_Z—WNFE+-F=+—H ' FTARSHME
in licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. A breakdown of the FHECDFEREE LT BEMNEMERTT - FTEZE

use of net proceeds is set forth in the table below: ZERABRESHNTE
Merger and
acquisition
of small to
medium sized Increasing
companies, and

other timber ~ Own-brand enhancing
Establishing  Establishing  processing promotion  our research

new own-brand plants, and other and General
production self-operated  and/or other marketing  development working
facilities store network resources events activities capital Total
AHRKE
FPBERF Ef
BRI A RGN RARMA
oAk BEEER MIKR/ REMTSR F0EH -
EERE BEERR HEMER ERED HEED BEge 1]
HKS' million HKS' million HKS' million HKS' millon HK$' milion HKS' million HKS' million
BEAT BERL BERT BEAT BBAT BEAT BEAT
From global offering RE2HEE
Amount of net proceeds FEREFE 418 39.8 279 1.1 98 139 144.3
Percentage to toal net proceeds BREREFERAL 29.0% 27.6% 19.3% 7.7% 6.8% 9.6% 100.0%
Utilised amount as at RZZ-ME+ZA=1-H 438 398 1.1 111 98 139 175
31 December 2014 REEER
Unutiised amount as at R-F-NE+-A=1-H - - 26.8 - - - 26.8
31 December 2014 FHALE
From June 2014 Placement REZZ-MEAARE
Amount of net proceeds it 0k 125.0 N/A N/A N/A N/A 300 155.0
TR @R TR TER
Percentage to total net proceeds BREREFERL 80.6% N/A N/A N/A N/A 19.4% 100.0%
TEm TER TER TER
Utilised amount as at R-F-NF+-A=1-H %83 N/A N/A N/A N/A 30.0 128.3
31 December 2014 REIS R TER TR TER TER
Unutiised amount as at RZZ-ME+=A=1-H 26.7 N/A N/A N/A N/A - 26.7
31 December 2014 FEFREE TR TER TER TER
From October 2014 Placement  %H-Z-Mf+AREE
Amount of net proceeds FriEsEsR 730 N/A 50.0 N/A N/A 25.0 148.0
TEm TER TER
Percentage to total net proceeds BHREREFERAML 49.3% N/A 33.8% N/A N/A 16.9% 100.0%
TR TR TER
Utilised amount as at RZE-RE+-F=+-A - N/A - N/A N/A 12.5 125
31 December 2014 Rk TEm TER TER
Unutiised amount as at R-F-NF+-A=1-H 730 N/A 50.0 N/A N/A 125 1355
31 December 2014 FEALH TR TER TR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (contied

EME HED

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, we employed a total of 601 full time
employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees for the Year were RMB33.8 million (2013: RMB29.1
million), representing 4.8% (2013: 6.1%) of the turnover of the Group.
The Group has been consistently enhancing production process
automation, and strengthening the training to staffs with an emphasis
on high-technique processing with a mission on the continuous
development and enhancing of competitiveness of our staffs. The
Group offered highly competitive salary package, as well as
discretionary bonuses and contribution to social insurance to its
employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees according to the assessment of individual performance.
Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15 June 2012 and
up to 31 December 2014, no options have been granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has no material events
after the reporting period.
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
believes that a high standard of corporate governance will provide a
framework for the Company to formulate its business strategies and
policies, and manage and lower the associated risks through effective
internal control procedures. It will also enhance the transparency of
the Company and strengthen the accountability to its shareholders
and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2014 (the “Year”) except for the deviations disclosed
under the sections headed “The Board” and “The Chairman and the
Chief Executive” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-to-
day management of the Company is delegated to the chief executive
officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management team.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings, 2013 Annual General Meeting and Special General Meeting
held during the year are set out in the following table:

EFRATHROEH  LEEESRAMA -
FFTERSRBLENFHR THE 2 EEEA
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BHHRRY/gHRY
2013
Annual Special Audit Remuneration  Nomination
General General Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
2013 RHRE
Name of Directors Bzl BRREXE o | Eze EitERE FlZRE REZRE
Executive Directors wER
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chairman) REERE(ZE) 1 1 6/6 N/A N/A N/A
il il il
Mr. Wu Qingshan REWEE 1 1 1 N/A N/A N/A
il il il
Ms. Xie Qingmei il e e 1 11 141 N/A N/A N/A
Wil Wil Wil
Non-executive Directors FUTER
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FEERE(R-F-NE 000 0 55 NA N/A N/A
(appointed on 16 July 2014) tB1/ BEEf) NER NER NEE
Mr. Wu Dongping RALE 0 0 911 N/A N/A N/A
Wil Wil Wil
Independent non-executive BUkYTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi E@vnt 1 1 AT 22 44 313
Prof. Jin Zhongwei SERUR 1 0 1111 22 44 33
Prof. SuWengjang HRAR 1 0 1 22 44 313
The Company has deviated from the code provision A.1.1 of the HREZESHMEEUESEREZEZSIAEE @ K

Code as other matters of the Board were dealt with by written
resolutions.

NEREBEEEATRITANEXE ALK -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer is Mr. Wu
Zheyan who was appointed as executive Director on 17 October
2011. The Company has deviated from the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. The Board believes that it is necessary to vest the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person due to its
unique role. In view of Mr. Wu Zheyan’s experience and established
market reputation in the industry, and the importance of Mr. Wu
Zheyan in the strategic development of the Company. The dual role
arrangement provides strong and consistent market leadership and is
critical for efficient business planning and decision making of the
Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation with the
members of the Board, and there are three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives,
the Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the
Board of its functions, including compliance with good corporate
governance practices; and encourages and facilitates active
contribution of Directors in board activities and constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. He also ensures
effective communication with shareholders of the Company and
receipt by the Directors of adequate and complete information.

Mr. Wu Zheyan, supported by other Board members and the senior
management, is also responsible for managing the day-to-day
business of the Company. He is also accountable to the Board for the
implementation of the Company’s overall strategies, and coordination
of overall business operations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five non-executive
Directors and three executive Directors. Three of the non-executive
Directors are independent. Further details of the composition of the
Board are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers; adoption
of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(“Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2012, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2012 (and for Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway, a term of three years
commencing from 16 July 2014). None of the Directors has entered
into a service contract with any member of the Group (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Wu
Qingshan, Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway and Mr. Lam Hin Chi shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration of
non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant code
provision. The Company had received from each of the Directors the
record of training the Directors received.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all the
Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee (collectively the “Board Committees”), for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, internal control
structure, risk management systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked with
recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating from
such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

(1)

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system;

reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the
attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the Company
and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management has
reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the Group’s internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2014, with recommendation to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board
that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors of
the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;
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(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

()  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(9 to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the same
to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@  to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are available
on request to any shareholder of the Company and are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace. The
Nomination Committee has also adopted the following diversity policy
on the Board:

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age, color,
disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or
expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability,
political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic
status, veteran status, and other characteristics that make our
directors unique.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these financial
statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 60 to 61.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
receives each year letter from the independent auditor confirming
their independence and objectivity and holds meetings with
representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope of
its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the year ended 31 December 2014
were approximately HK$1,600,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal
control and assessment and management of risks. In meeting its
responsibility, the Board has put in place policies and procedures
which provide a framework for the identification and management of
risks.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In the meeting held on 26 March 2015, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The findings
of the Audit Committee have been reported to the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Wong Wai Lun, is a full-
time employee of the Group. Please refer to his biographical details
as set out on page 59 of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the memorandum
of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Wong Wai Lun, Company Secretary
Tel: (852) 3904 1868
Postal Address: Room 2702, China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business stated above.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 62. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 67.

On 26 March 2015, the Board recommends HK$0.005 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.004) per share as a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$0.013 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.0103)).

BONUS ISSUE

The Board recommended that bonus shares will be issued on the
basis of one bonus share for every 100 Shares held to shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 28(c) to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB327,425,000 (2013: RMB108,340,000), of which approximately
RMB5,409,000 (2013: RMB10,317,000) has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings are set out in
notes 25 and 27 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 24.5% (2013: 34.4%) of the
Group’s total revenue and the Group’s largest customer for the year
accounted for approximately 5.6% (2013: 8.6%) of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 46.0% (2013: 34.6%) of the Group’s total purchases,
while the largest supplier for the year accounted for approximately
16.6% (2013: 8.3%) of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital has any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 601 (2013: 534) employees
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s
employees by their responsibilities:
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Management, Finance & Administration EIE - B RITE 69
Sales & Marketing HHEE K A a7
Design B'E 36
Research & Development fiff 2% 39
Production EE 391
Quality Control mE BT 19
Total #Et 601
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Total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB33,823,000 (2013: RMB29,120,000) and the
details are set out in note 6(b) to the financial statements.
Remuneration for employees is based upon their qualification,
experience, job nature, performance and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees who are
employed by the Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
PRC and the existing policy requirements of the local government.
The Group also maintains the employee short-term health insurance
and unforeseen injury insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff
quarters to its employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as
defined below).

DIRECTORS

Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Mr. Wu Qingshan
Ms. Xie Qingmei

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway (appointed on 16 July 2014)
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board
of Directors and senior management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
RN
EElA S BaKHE K& H B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 401,621,200 29.42%
RBEKRE Long position (Note)
REGEEOER TR ()
Beneficial owner/Long position 10,894,000 0.80%
BRBEAAN A
Mr. Wu Qingshan Beneficial owner/Long position 27,502,800 2.01%
REWLESE BRBAAN A
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 9,638,000 0.70%
HFEER L ERBEEAN TR

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas

Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

fiat: REEREWE RN E 2 E %A B2 B Green Seas
Capital Limited #5745 89 17 * # A #E 2w ©
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation defined under the SFO which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as at 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the agreement for sale and purchase of parts and
structures of timber villas entered into with Zhangping Jiupengxi
Ecological Tourism Development Company Limited as disclosed in
the section headed “Continuing connected transactions” in this
section, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

FERRRAQTRG RBEKRD
MERRAR

RoB—mE+=A=+—R THALCEH
FRRADTBRITHA B) RAR TR 54
RIS S A IR IR A R R DI XV B E 2 R
F05BHEXATRBOMBIAR - JRKE
# B E DI E 336 B R AR B M
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Interest in shares D tER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
Fediid i g
&8 e Bip EaKE Bir8H B (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/ 401,621,200 29.42%
Long position (Note 1)
BEREEA TR (M)
Hong Kong Investments Group Limited Beneficial owner/ 134,700,000 9.87%
BERREEEBRAA Long position (Note 2)
EnBEaA e (Hd2)
Mr. Cheung Chi Mang Interest in controlled corporation/ 134,700,000 9.87%

SRER A Long position (Note 2)

RS EENER TR (At2)

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

2. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Investments Group Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheung Chi Mang, who is deemed to be interested

in the shares held by Hong Kong Investments Group Limited.
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1. Green Seas Capital Limited #) & & B 1T A H R HE =
LERERERHRAE  REEFLEWR AR Green Seas
Capital Limited %54 B A& {5 7 A 1 4 o
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that were
required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO as of 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other persons
(including consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The Directors were authorised to grant options to subscribe for
shares of the Company and to allot, issue and deal with the shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and to take all such steps as may be necessary and/or
desirable to implement and give effect to the Share Option Scheme.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue immediately following
completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being 100,000,000 shares,
excluding any shares that may be issued under the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the Company), unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of the
Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number of
shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular
option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price
of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange; (b)
the average official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share. The
Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted
and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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PLACING OF SECURITIES

For the purpose of raising capital while broadening the shareholder
base and capital base of the Company, on 18 June 2014 and 23
September 2014, the Company entered into the agreements with
Green Seas Capital Limited (“Green Seas”), a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Wu Zheyan, and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited,
for the placing and subscription of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the placing and subscription agreement entered into on
18 June 2014, 200,000,000 ordinary shares held by Green Seas
(“2014 June Placing Shares”) were placed to not less than six
independent placees by way of top-up placing at HK$0.80 per
Placing Share on 23 June 2014. The price per 2014 June Placing
Share represents a discount of approximately 3.61% to the closing
price of HK$0.83 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 18
June 2014. On 26 June 2014, Green Seas subscribed 200,000,000
ordinary shares issued by the Company which represented an
aggregate nominal value of HK$2,000,000 at a subscription price of
HK$0.80 for each share. Net proceeds from the placing of shares
were approximately HK$155.0 million after related share issue
expenses, which represented approximately HK$0.775 per share.

Pursuant to the placing and subscription agreement entered into on
23 September 2014, 165,000,000 ordinary shares held by Green
Seas (“2014 September Placing Shares”) were placed to not less
than six independent placees by way of top-up placing at HK$0.93
per 2014 September Placing Share on 26 September 2014. The
price per 2014 September Placing Share represents a discount of
approximately 3.1% to the closing price of HK$0.96 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 September 2014. On 7
October 2014, Green Seas subscribed 165,000,000 ordinary shares
issued by the Company which represented an aggregate nominal
value of HK$1,650,000 at a subscription price of HK$0.93 for each
share. Net proceeds from the placing of shares were approximately
HK$148.0 million after related share issue expenses, which
represented approximately HK$0.897 per share.
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The Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company to
raise capital from the equity market in order to enhance the capital
base of the Company. The usage of the net proceeds raised under
the two subscriptions above are disclosed in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Use of
Net Proceeds from the Global Offering and Placing” in this report.

ISSUE OF UNLISTED DEBENTURES

On 29 August 2014, the Company entered into two subscription
agreements with two subscribers for debentures with an aggregate
principal of HK$20.0 million due 29 August 2017. The debentures are
unsecured, unlisted and not convertible into securities of the
Company. The Directors consider that the issue of the debentures is
an appropriate means of raising additional capital for the Company
since it will not have any dilution effect on the shareholding of the
existing shareholders. The net proceeds received by the Company
was HK$19.9 million.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Company during the Year under the Listing
Rules:

Sales to Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism Development
Company Limited (“Connected Party”)

The Connected Party is 85% owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan and 10%
owned by his mother.

Since December 2010, the Group has entered into a series of
transactions with Connected Party by selling parts and structures of
timber villas to Connected Party. In order to regulate the said
transactions, we have entered into the Agreement for Sale and
Purchase of Parts and Structures of Timber Villas (KRB &4 M AKE R
& A &R 2 $HE MEREAEZE %) with the Connected Party on 15 June
2012 (the “Connected Party Agreement”), pursuant to which we shall
sell parts and structures of timber villas to Connected Party for the
three years ending 31 December 2014 at the price to be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference
to the production costs and the price offered to independent third
parties. The Connected Party Agreement have been renewed and
further extended to 31 December 2015.

It has been expected that the aggregate sales by us under the
Connected Party Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the year ending 31 December 2015 will not exceed the annual
caps of RMB8 million and RMB20 million respectively.

Our aggregate sales to Connected Party were RMB7,474,000 (2013:
RMB7,323,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014. For details,
please refer to note 30 to the financial statements.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed these
connected transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the year
ended 31 December 2014 (i) had not been approved by the Board of
the Company, (i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, (iii) were not
entered into, in material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions, and (iv) had exceeded the
cap disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 30 to the financial
statements, and none of which constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of their
holding of such securities.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Zheyan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 35, is an executive Director, chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as
a Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
20086.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. Wu is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping and a nephew of Mr. QS Wu.

Wu Qingshan (Mr. QS Wu), aged 46, was appointed as a Director
on 15 June 2012. Mr. QS Wu is currently in charge of marketing and
production management for the Group. Mr. QS Wu has over 24 years
of experience in timber products enterprise management. Before
joining the Group, Mr. QS Wu served as a deputy director of
Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory (JZF W4 423 M &8I &) from
1993 to 1995 and a technician of Zhangping Xinan Timber Processing
Factory (& M Z A 424 I LE) from 1986 to 1993. Since the
foundation of the Group in 1995, Mr. QS Wu has been a director and
a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura.

Mr. QS Wu is an uncle of Mr. Wu and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu
Dongping.
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Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 47, was appointed as a Director on
15 June 2012. Ms. Xie is primarily responsible for procurement
matters in respect of the Group. She has over 12 years of experience
in corporate management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group
in 1999, and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping
Kimura since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006.
Ms. Xie was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura
as well as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December
2000, and has been running the procurement department of
Zhangping Kimura since 2003.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Dongping, aged 60, is a non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group. Mr. Wu
Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from February
2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group, Mr. Wu
Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of Zhangping
Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the director of
Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian (@324 & F #4522 71
) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively. Mr. Wu
Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (2BAMZELFME B & 45
BRAMDRMZ 8 €). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (FEIMEBEARM TESEAMPRMRETESE
M JE £ 8 &) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (#
AW IRZELEWE) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 20
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation and
timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on behalf of
our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry industry
standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC national
and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu and the brother-in-law of
Mr. QS Wu.
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Lee Kong Wai, Conway (Mr. Lee), aged 59, has over 30 years of
experience in public accounting and auditing, corporate finance,
merger and acquisition and initial public offerings. Mr. Lee served at
Ernst & Young from September 1980 to September 2009. Mr. Lee
was a partner of Ernst & Young and held key leadership positions in
the development of Ernst & Young in China. Mr. Lee graduated from
Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston Polytechnic) in
London with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts in July 1980 and further
obtained his postgraduate diploma in business from Curtin University
of Technology in Australia in February 1988.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1117), West China Cement
Limited (stock code: 2233), Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (stock
code: 951), GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (stock code:
493), Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1115),
NVC Lighting Holding Limited (stock code: 2222), Yashili International
Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings Limited
(formerly Same Time Holdings Limited) (stock code: 451), China
Rundong Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365) and WH Group
Limited (stock code: 288), all of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
and CITIC Securities Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6030) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600030). From October 2009 to August 2013,
Mr. Lee served as an independent non-executive director of China
Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 966). From September 2009 to
December 2011, Mr. Lee served as an independent non-executive
director of Sino Vanadium Inc., a company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange (stock code: SVX).

Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau
Society of Certified Practising Accountants respectively. Since 2007,
Mr. Lee has been a member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hunan Province.

FREM(FEE) 595 RUEIFILER 2
A% - AHRKEBARERARBESTERA
BOFER - FEEAR-NNTEFAAEZE_ZET
NENAEBR LK GFTEERAT - FREBE
ERKEFAMBEBHERA  LELKEHENE
BAPBEXBNERTETESRS - FEER
—NN\EELARENBATHERZFIER
SHEETER) BEXRELE IR
—NNANEZ ABBEZERNRER R KRENEE

IRIE S

FEERRPEBRBEERERAFMRG R
8% 1117) ~ REEBARER AT (RO
2233) - HEE NIEBR AR A B (R DR :
951)  BIEXEFEHRERBR A ACKRMD KR :
493) - PS5 100K ERIER B IR A 7 (IR K5E -
1115) - ETBBAZER AR 2 A (R M K%
2222) ~ HETFIBE BRI AR B R A A (B (5 R 57
1230) & 15 2% T LR 22 % 5 IR 2 &) ( A1 78 Same
Time Holdings Limited) (A% 3 X 5%  451) ~
HRTEEBARAR (RN - 1365) REM
B BRA R (RGOS 288) (Ll BEES
BERSERAR([BRA)ER ETHAGE)
RAEEHRD AR A A (— B AT (R R
5% :6030) X EBFFRZH(KR MG AR
600030) LA AR KB ERITEE - A=
TTNF+AZTE—=FNA " TEEETHA
KNERBIERBR AR (—EEBIM MR
a]) (R REE - 966) ZBUIENITES - AT
ThFENAEZT—F+=F  FHEEASino
Vanadium Inc. (—EEZmEZBHFX HFEIER
(BRMDAREE : SVX) LR RR]) 2B FENITE
$ °

FRERERB MBI EAMHESE
BMESFETMASER REFSFEFAMAE
B BHAEGEASE 8 RPIEMESEIA
B -B_TTLFE FEE-ER/TEA
RBUGHEERAEERE -

1% 1§

Merry Garden Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014



Board of Directors and Senior Management (continved)

ﬁgg&%%&%ﬁ}% ()

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and an associate member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 26 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number of
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of VST
Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 77, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
37 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

BAKHTES

EEl(EEE) 0 BT —FXAt+tH
REERERARRBUIFNTES - EXRED
MAREBHFARSIHMATEREE  TAR
BRFFERSTMAE AREREABISTE
FEAEREAGIMASEE - EALEXER
BERTARE  BEEGHEEXEREE
(REB)NBLB - EREENT - B KRGS
HISEHRB6FLER - EXE D REHAERN
TIRETHRRINSBRAE -

ELAERARAERERAR (KR : 856)
ZEMIENITESE LR RRBRA R LT -

SEAHBM(EBM) 77 BT ——F<A
THHREZEREDRMIERNITES - RAN
MRERHER - EAMREF TR EFEI7
FHER - EHBEN—NA—FEXRNERIME
Bt TEMEERLCENT - FER—AN\—
FE-NN=ZFHRURIREE 5 i EE#EE
BEAMRERLERM R—ANLOEE
—HNARFEDFIEEEEBEBEMN L RENET
B MR B EE o

EBREERERAR 57

—E—JUFFR



58

Board of Directors and Senior Management (coninved

(4&)
\m=/

s NNERERE

Professor Su Wengiang (Professor Su), aged 59, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (875
EE8) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions
in timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (2 TE{t TESEEE) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (ff Bl /2 & KR EHE 5 &) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (FF B ARM BEARR @R BIHBEARMIBEESE
E&®HEXRIEEZEZEE) (n December 2009), member of Board of
Experts Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (FFEIAMRETLEHMEEREZTES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIMEBGAMEZSEAMRERRXEEZESR) (n
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (F BIMERI SR RE LR T ERRACEME(ETIZ))
(in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast Forestry
University in July 1982, major in professional chemical processing of
forestry products (ME{LE T TIEH ), and obtained a Doctorate
Degree in December 2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 49, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s financial management affairs. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the financial
departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFE=%E %4
A &) and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (8 & & & & # &)
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (#&#E & R ML EHE4L) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.
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Wong Wai Lun (Mr. Wong), aged 31, joined our Group in January
2014, is the group financial controller and company secretary of the
Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for our Group’s accounting and
financial management. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 9 years of
experience in the field of accounting and auditing services. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Wong was an audit manager of KPMG. Mr.
Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from the University
of Queensland, Australia in 2004.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR RGeS

bcbnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Merry Garden Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Merry
Garden Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 164, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report «contined)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
BAEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—2—QmE —z—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®TRT AR#EFT
Turnover BEH 4 701,231 475,051
Cost of sales SHE R A (522,818) (323,317)
Gross profit EF 178,413 151,734
Other revenue EH bk A 5(a) 17,888 23,070
Other net gain HAb U558 5(b) 2,172 48,683
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HEMAX (21,714) (13,818)
Administrative expenses THAX (56,279) (46,979)
Profit from operations EERR 120,480 162,690
Finance costs BhE R AN 6(a) (11,326) (5,463)
Profit before taxation BIRBIEF 6 109,154 157,227
Income tax Frig i 7(@) (18,344) (32,806)
Profit for the year FERER 90,810 124,421
Earnings per share sEREH
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARET) 11 0.08 0.12

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated HF70BE5 164 BN T AKRGEMBHRERN —
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity 89 ° ERTZARRAD FIHERE A AR B EAEE RHF
shareholders of the company attributable to the profit for the year are  FYEFIS ST 5E 28(b) °

set out in note 28(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mrelEmlEMTE R EER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—=2—mE =
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBETT

Profit for the year FARF 90,810 124,421

Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZ2HEKE

(after tax adjustment) (IERMEARE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HiEnftBH Bk
profit or loss: mIEA -

Exchange differences on translation of financial ~— #E 5 A R A0

statements of subsidiaries outside ([ EL ) AN 8~ 7

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), D RREENIER =5 -

net of nil tax HBRZERIA 6 1,050
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEKSEE 90,816 125,471

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated OBEZEF 164 EMMFEARGE M REN—

2 W
*

tl»

financial statements.
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR A BRI ER

At 31 December 2014 R=—Z—F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—Z=—mE =%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaF AR®BTTT AR#EFT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 12 293,935 198,303
Lease prepayments HAETETK 13 50,290 51,307
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions  UsFE¥% - MR & 35 &)
of property, plant and equipment JERNERTE R 14 48,311 51,302
Interest in an associate PR N B A 15 631 -
Other financial assets Hih o gt & E 16 2,495 2,495
Deferred tax assets T IBE B 18(b) 5,414 4,821
401,076 308,228
Current assets BN E
Inventories TE 19 297,528 191,709
Current portion of lease prepayments HEBNZHHBIEE S 13 1,056 1,096
Trade and other receivables B hEMEWRIE 20 278,660 162,372
Entrusted loans LZEER 21 30,000 -
Pledged deposits BEEER 22 99,268 68,601
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 23(a) 174,144 75,052
880,656 498,830
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A IR 24 19,356 23,937
Bank loans IRITER 25 345,699 239,651
Current portion of deferred income IRIEUR A BB EFEE 5 26 1,163 1,179
Current taxation BNERFRIE 18(a) 29,198 20,517
Net current assets BEOEESRE 485,240 213,546
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

I\‘/T\ = /E\ﬁ

At 31 December 2014 R —Z

FARSLER =

—mE+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—E—plE —E—=%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaF AR®TT AR#EFT
Total assets less current liabilities #REAABAKR 886,316 | 521,774
Non-current liabilities FERBAER
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 27 67,397 25,097
Non-current portion of deferred income IR A B9 FERNEARE 26 19,527 18,314
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEAE 18(b) 2,050 1,191
R s . 44,602
NET ASSETS EERE 797,342 477172
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEER R
Capital B 28(c) 11,053 8,135
Reserves i 786,289 469,037
TOTAL EQUITY EREH 797,342 477172

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

March 2015.

Wu Zheyan
REE
Chairman

S

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Director
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Statement of Financial Position

BT I AR 2R

At 31 December 2014 R—_ZE—FE+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—E—lE —E—=4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaF AR®TRT ARBTT
Non-current assets JERBNEE
Interests in subsidiaries AHT B A T aERS 17 356,181 117,306
Current assets MENEE
Deposits and other prepayments e REAMTER R 20 399 301
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFeEEY 23(a) 85 47
484 348
Current liabilities Bid =R
Other payables HEtbpgfxs 24 2409 1,179
Net current liabilites =~~~ =#BRff#&# === = 0000 | (1,925) (831)
Total assets less current liabilities BE#ERTHAR 354,256 116,475
Non-current liabilities ERBHAER
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 27 15,778 -
NET ASSETS EERE 338,478 116,475
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERER 28(a)
Capital B 11,053 8,135
Reserves HE& 327,425 108,340
TOTAL EQUITY gt b 338,478 116,475

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

March 2015.

Wu Zheyan
REE
Chairman
FE

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

R-E-—RAF=A -+t NEESEFSELKE
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Xie Qingmei
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Director
E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GOERBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FOFHERHE AR
Share Share Exchange Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
B* BinaR ER G E R RERT #a

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
(note 28(c))  (note 28(d)fj))  (note 28(a)(ii))  (note 28(dl)(i)

(Bst2o8c)  (HizEese))  (Hiatese)i) — (Hia2sa)ii)

At 1 January 2013 RZ2-=%—-H—H 8,135 126,262 3,031 24,612 200,201 362,241
Changes in equity —E-CEfEREE:

for 2013:
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 124,421 124,421
Other comprehensive income 2 Btz - - 1,050 - - 1,050
Total comprehensive income 2 W% - - 1,050 - 124,421 125,471
Dividends approved and BEFECHER

paid in respect of BRERE

the previous year - (10,540) - - - (10,540)
Appropriations to statutory BT F

reserve - - - 14,162 (14,162) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - sy - 14te2 (14162 (10540
At 31 December 2013 RIE-ZF

and 1 January 2014 +ZA=+-HR

—Z-mE-HF—-H 8,135 115,722 4,081 38,774 310,460 477,172

Changes in equity “E-MERSEE

for 2014:
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 90,810 90,810
Other comprehensive income £ 2 E Ui - - 6 - - 6
Total comprehensive income 2 Bz 8% - - 6 - 90,810 90,816
Issue of shares upon placing  EZ&E %17/ H 2,918 236,753 - - - 239,671
Dividends approved and BIFEEHER

paid in respect of BERERS

the previous year - (10,317) - - - (10,317)
Appropriations to statutory  E{EEEHE

reserve - - - 8,517 8,517) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2918 2646 - 8w ST 229364
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mF

+-A=1+—-H 11,053 342,158 4,087 47,291 392,753 797,342

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated HF70BE5 164 WM ARG M BHEN —
financial statements. &5 o
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Gonsolidated Cash Flow Statement

I\\/T\ IE N7 ;ﬁl%%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NFE+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®TRT ARBT T
Operating activities EEEE
Cash (used in)/generated from KEER(FRA),/
operations 88 e 23(b) (94,305) 33,988
Income tax paid BAATS R (9,397) (20,822)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE(FRA) R
from operating activities . Be®w (103,702) 13,166
Investing activities KEEE
Payment for the purchase of property, MEBEVE BEL
plant and equipment BY{EN (105,550) (136,076)
Receipt of government grants to I ERTh & AR S Y
subsidise capital expenditure B 2,350 -
Interest received B E 3,446 833
Payment for investment in an associate  {REEE AT IRE (900) -
Entrusted loans to a third party ENEZRAZEZAER (30,000) -
Consideration received from land BT i R E
resumption - 62,390
Proceeds of disposal of land use right & T b FAREFT1S SR IE - 4,085
Proceeds for disposal of property, HEWE - BRE MEE
plant and equipment FTS3A 49 3
Net cash used in investing activities REEZHFARLFHE (130,605) (68,765)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continueq

relReRERe

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NF+-A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA BB ZI7R)

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®TTT AR#EFT
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITE R ERIE 741,570 555,521
Repayments of bank loans %“ziﬂiﬁfém (609,000) (416,455)
Proceeds from issue of unsecured TEERERFTSHIE
debentures 15,778 -
Increase in pledged deposits 2 EIE 0 (30,667) (59,450)
Interest paid 2AFLE (13,617) (8,495)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders SRR RIS R AL B
of the company (10,317) (10,540)
Net proceeds from issue of shares Al SRR TRR DM ATS
upon placing, net of issuing costs FOEFRE - HREITRY 239,671 -
Net cash generated from MEFHFRERESBHE
financing activites 3 33,41 8 77777777777 6 0581 )
Net increase in cash and cash HeRASEREY
equivalents BineE 99,111 4,982
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BHMBRE&RRE
at 1 January EED 75,052 70,041
Effect of foreign exchange EFEmneeE
rate changes (19) 29
Cash and cash equivalents R+=R=+—H®
at 31 December ReRA&EEN 23(a) 174,144 75,052

The notes on pages 70 to 164 form part of these consolidated F70BE% 164 BN T AKRGE M BHREN —
financial statements. =ii52)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A BTSRRIt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Merry Garden Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 17 October 2011 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The Company was listed on the Stock
Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 26
March 2015.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and
the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”,
which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to
that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

& BTSSR M e

(B =B 1ERI)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair value
(see note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
b & B A SRR M5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

— Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

— Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

— Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

— IFRIC 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended IFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended IFRS 10. Investment entities are
required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss. These amendments do not have an impact
on these financial statements as the Company does not
qualify to be an investment entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
IAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the
policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or CGU whose recoverable amount
is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments do not have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

IFRIC 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be
recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the guidance is consistent
with the Group’s existing accounting policies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B MRS ER M R

(=B 1ER5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(k)(i)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(M

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). Dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in note 2(u)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(k(ii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(w)).

(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

BEASHEE®)

(M

HA AR AR FHIRE (7)

IR A E SR E L T BNER £
AR BEDBRAIHEEES -

DFER S RE B H A RSB
- MEMASEREIREMLEE R
HmAERERERANN R FERED
FRET - BRib 25 R TARIER
M5 EREE LA FEEEASER

EBRNBRAEFRE YRR RBIERE
BRR&EEMBRR R AR (M
FE2(k) ° BRANEE 75 H BB AR B B
FE2(U)(V) FTEI R RN 1B as I FERR ©

B
R

Mk
5

BRI LERSORER (R

RaERNRARESEN

BEiEs - RETDNAE B AR

B /HEREE A G BRE S B
B/ I ETER

7

L
T

N
=
B
B

m N
K

#
2

TTEERMIT A
PTESBTANSRATERR - A
TENSEEARRBENHE - B
#iHR D TAEME £ RRENER
1R MR -

W WE MR
ME - BN REERARZTITE
KO ENIER (RHFE2K)i) °

W - BERBRENEREEKRAE
EMERAN BETE - FERME
I8 B LA R W18 & FE FTAE R 3R O AR AR
MR B G (B ) REE Al
HSEBEERREERA(RWE
2(w)) °

76  Merry Garden Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B R5)

a P BEmRM T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

— Leasehold Over the unexpired term of lease

improvement  but no more than 5 years

— Plantand 10 years

machinery

— Furniture, fittings 5 years
and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

F UABRHESR)

2 EAREHEE®

(h)

Y - BB KR @)

W B R AR ETE B R R RS
EAMBE RN EFERE SRS
HEMEEE MNEEET BB
MIREFSE I B BB R R o

R AERFRRERERE
SEINE - WEEYE  BERRE
HERARE SR RISREE (F)

FHE
- EF DA TR A R (A
BESERETE (AR
®THBEBTHE20F)
- HEYE NHEHEHRETHBBESF
g HE
- BERAE 10%

- &l KE 5F

- KRE 5

7 0 E 52 R T L U A R (1
B) BERRE

Nk
IN°

7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
b & B A SRR M5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready for
its intended use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

BEASHEE®)

0

EETRE
ERTREEETNYE  BERE
BARSRZEORE IR NRE
BRI AR (R 5E 2(K)(i) ° B E
EEEHMNEEREERLERAE -
FEEEAMLEAEIRE AR %%
A IFIEE AL - TR TIZAIEA
M - BEREEBEENA -

FERTIRAERBRT AR T Ak
Al WAGHREATE -

HEEE
MWAEEREEH AR —EERZH
B 22 R 1 5 TE B EE Y (E R R 10 E A
MEBARR-FEXZEHE - A1F
BZHBABEEHE - BRIRE R
HEREMMEERL - MARARR
RTEEAENANEE -

() HEFEEEHNEENDTE
AEERBHOKENEE -
BHEOEMBENEASD R
pAOREBEAEE - 8
BREEe»EAREREN
ERA - TEBEBMARENE
REB S B2 A0 0 R AE 40 T3 53
BRKEHEE -

78  Merry Garden Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

o

& BTSSR M e
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(k) Impairment of assets

(@

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities

Trade and other receivables, entrusted loans and
investment in equity securities that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities (Continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in an associate accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
2(Kk)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(K)

@i

Impairment of trade and other receivables,

entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and entrusted
loans carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For other receivables carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated recoverable amount.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

(1)

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
entrusted loans and investment in equity
securities (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  lease prepayments;

— non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

& BTSSR M e

(B =B 1ERI)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A
reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with 1AS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(u)(ii). When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
b & B A SRR M5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Construction contracts (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of each
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) under
“Trade and other receivables” or the “Gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability) under
“Trade and other payables”, as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included under
“Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are presented as “Receipts
in advance” under “Trade and other payables”.

Trade and other receivables and entrusted
loans

Trade and other receivables and entrusted loans are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(k)
(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(k)

(0)-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using an effective
interest method.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B R5)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
b & B A SRR M5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
that they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of reversal and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

F UABRHESR)

2

BERETHE®)

(s)

FriSai (&)

R I & B R B & D BN
BN EETY S e R R
B S B 60 W) R S A B B
ER(MTABREBAHN—TFH)
AR A R M B A T A S
B NBEIHER  QERNAE
B LS MR AR B R A
BRTAMABE M ER - MBI
BiER - BIERNBA LS REE
HER -

EERNECHASEIRREEN
EERAENTAPERLFETR -
RIEREEBERMHNEE BB
KitE - RERABEMABETTEE
B o

EEHRBEENRAESNSHREH
B REEITIRG - WETBAIEE
T S FERR TR A PAE AR B B RO A

TENIZE RS (E SRR o & A RETFAE R SR
FERBOEFEFA - AMEAZFHR
iR m




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
b & B A SRR M5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(W)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset. An unconditional
government grant is recognised in profit or loss as
other revenue when the grant becomes receivable.

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation with functional
currency other than Renminbi is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ©continueq)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(8) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the
same third party or vice versa.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (j).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Netrealisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(i) Impairment of trade receivables and entrusted loans

Management determines the impairment of trade
receivables and entrusted loans on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its debtors and
current market conditions. If the financial conditions of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual write-off would be
higher than estimated. Management reassesses the
impairment of trade receivables and entrusted loans at
the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Depreciation

[tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

@)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sales of outdoor wooden products, engaging in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services, retail sales of
outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail
shops, and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

Turnover represents

(i) the sales value of goods sold to customers less
returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other
sales tax; and

(i) contract revenue derived from projects of outdoor
wooden products including the provision of design
and installation services.
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4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. EXFRIBEWRH

(Continued)
(@ Turnover (Continued) @ ZxEE@)
The amount of each significant category of revenue &SN TR S EBAERIRAD
recognised in turnover is analysed as follows: SEIFWT :
2014 2013
—Z—{mF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Sales of outdoor wooden products HEPIMREE 659,016 465,830
Retail sales of wooden products TERR SR 24,245 8,356
Contract revenue derived from HERPINMRRIAE
projects of outdoor wooden (BB R T MR HRTS)
products including the provision of FriSm& KA
design and installation services 1,469 865
Sales of renewable energy products  $4% B A 82RE R 16,501 -
701,231 475,051
No individual external customers accounted for 10% or HE_ZT-NFR-_Z—=F1+_H
more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 =+—BIEFE - BEERIINBER
December 2014 and 2013. IEAREEW A 10% A F o
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these FAZSEPENEFREERRT
customers are set out in note 31(a). Further details SEEEH A E31@)  BREAEERT
regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed EEBHE—LHFBERBNOT -
below.
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4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified four
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

— Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

—  Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

—  Projects of outdoor wooden products: engaged in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services to
domestic customers.

— Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group’s external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.
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(Continued)

@

(b= HHETI)

F UAREST)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. BEERIBER @)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEFH &)
Segment results (Continued) i) PEEEE)
The measure used for reportable segment profit/ BRI 2|MoEm A (F18) K
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after taxation (excluding the AWt EEREERBEEAN
after tax effect of government subsidies and land Bl TEER PINKER
resumption)” of Manufacturing and sales of wooden BEREERHEBERERE
products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor e SaW BRE®ER, (B
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of 18) (e E BT AL & 4 iU
renewable energy products, respectively. o TERE) ] -
A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is NEEERBBENFEDNTE
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior HaAEEaaEEERME
executive management and accordingly, no WM EEBOAEENEFE
segment assets or liabilities information is o
presented.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REBEZ-ZT—NFRZFT—=
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior F+A=+—HLFE %
executive management for the purposes of resource BRHPEEDHFRBFERA
allocation and assessment of segment performance SEsaEEERHOBHAN
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is SET 28w H 0 E R H I 0
set out below: I
2014
—2-mE
Manufacturing Projects of ~ Manufacturing
and sales outdoor and sales of
of wooden Retail wooden renewable
products business products  energy products Total
EER F% LERYE
HEREE DERE FUEEE BLEEBESR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTT ARRTT AERTT AR%TT AERTT
Revenue derived from the Group's  BEAEESNS
external customers ZEHMA 659,016 24,245 1,469 16,501 701,231
Inter-segment revenue ABEUA 22,726 - - 463 23,189
Reportable segment revenue TERDERA 681,742 24,245 1,469 16,964 724,420
Reportable segment profit N2 PEA
(oroft after taxation (excluding (BH&ER (FRE
the after tax effect of government  BFEH Rk 2
subsiclies and land resumption)) B4 FE)) 84,721 1,290 59 3,496 89,566
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4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results (Continued)

4, EX

2013
“R-cF
Manufacturing Projects of Manufacturing
and sales outdoor and sales of
of wooden Retai wooden renewable
products business products  energy products Total
EER = EERHE
HERER TEEH AERIER BERRER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Revenue derived from the BEREENTER
Group's external customers ST 465,830 8,356 865 - 475,051
Inter-segment revenue PEBERA 5,984 - - - 5,984
Reportable segment revenue B GELON 471814 8,356 865 - 481,035
Reportable segment profitfloss) ~ AI2HABEH/(BR)
(oroft/loss) after taxation (BE&ET/ (B8)
(excluding the after tax effect of  (TEEHFAEER
government subsidies and TR E))
land resumption)) 82,164 (4,384) (193) - 77,587
EZBREERERAT

e
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4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. EXFRIBEWRH

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

and reportable segment profit

(b) DEBRFR ()

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue (i) T2/ BUWAET2HRD I
a8 R 49 1 BR
2014 2013
—E—QlE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBETT

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue A 2D IR A 724,420 481,035
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 44 PRI A (23,189) (5,984)
Consolidated turnover ] 701,231 475,051
Profit &
Reportable segment profit derived & B A& @ 4% F &Y

from the Group’s external A 2D 50 )

customers 89,566 77,587

Government subsidies and gain

BBURT 78 B B b Yo o

from land resumption (net of tax) (F0reFiiE) 10,628 50,384
Unallocated head office and KOBLBMERE &

corporate expenses NAEIRAX (9,384) (8,550)
Consolidated profit after taxation SEBTB RN 90,810 124,421
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the

geographical location of the Group’s revenue from

external customers. The geographical location of

customers is based on the location at which the

goods were delivered or the services were provided.

EEBERIHERE)

(o) DEBEFR®)

(i) HbiHER

TREABEAKEIRE SN
BEPRAR ML ERE R -
BEFEOMIBAE AT MR
BASKARTG PR B AR E o

2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

The PRC (place of domicile) R (FTfEHD) 390,886 231,616

North America SIE) 244,737 165,141

Europe BN 43,314 30,205

Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC)  ZEARE (TBIERE) 22,294 48,089
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Bl 248435

701,231 475,051

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN 5

H WA R E b Wi 5 88
H

(@) Other revenue (@ HakA

2014 2013
—E—QmE —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT AREFT
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BUA 3,446 833
Government subsidies BT Bh 14,170 22,237
Others EAh 272 -
17,888 23,070

EEXEEZERERAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN
(Continued)

(@)

(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

5 HRAREMWZEZFEES

Other revenue (Continued) (@ HAUWA @)
The Group received unconditional government subsidies HE_Z—NE+_A=+—HILF
of RMB13,017,000 (2013: RMB17,765,000) for the year B AEBEREEGEBFHEAR
ended 31 December 2014. These government subsidies #13,017,000C(ZE—=ZF : AR
were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry #17,765,0007T) ° B FARNMER
Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura”) for subsidising PR F(DEFAR ) BRI E BT
various expenses already incurred and were recognised A AEER R EAMZIER S RN A
as other revenue when they became receivable. LT By e R A EL AL A o
The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred REBBEERMBEREE LR RRE
income which compensates the Group for the cost of its AR R 5L 722 R e B A A O IER T A B
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development. BRAEREEWRA - BHE T —NF
Government subsidies (deferred income) of +ZA=+—HLFE  BIFHM
RMB1,153,000 (2013: RMB4,472,000) were recognised (GEEUWA) AR%1,153,0007T (=
as other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014, T—=%F: AR#¥4,472,0007T) 2
which is on a systematic basis over the useful life of the TRAEHMBA - WIHREBEEN
relevant assets (note 26). e RE A Rt R (3T 26) -
Other net gain (o) HpUz 558
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Gain from land resumption (note) T bt as (A ) - 44,802
Net foreign exchange gain P H e 558 4,356 2,722
Net gain on disposal of land use right - £ + $i {5 FR #E Uk 2 0 F 58 - 146
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEDE  BEMEE
property, plant and equipment Uz, (fE518) 558 45 (@)
Changes in fair value of derivative PTHESR T AN EES
financial instruments (2,229) 1,629
Others Hth = 612)
2,172 48,683

Note: On 8 March 2013, Zhangping Kimura entered into a land
resumption agreement with Zhangping Land Reserve Centre, an
administrative body of the local government authority at Zhangping,
Fujian province in relation to the land resumption of eight parcels of
land at Fushan Industrial Zone (the “Land”) for a consideration of
RMB62,390,000 (the “Consideration”). Upon the completion of the
land resumption transaction in July 2013, the Group recognised a
gain of RMB44,802,000, which represented the Consideration
received less the aggregate carrying value of the Land and
immovable structures erected on the Land totalling
RMB17,588,000 (see notes 12 and 13).

Mt : RZE—=F=AN\B EFANEES
T s SO (R BREE R T
it 7T BUTHREEE T a7 TECERPT) 3t \ IR
MRBINTEEN L ((ZLm])Ht
WUE S ER Y TR REA
AR#62,300,000 7T ([RIE]) - R=ZF
—ZHFTARKRIMEERZS% A%
B R U 25 AR5 44,802,0007T © B
B AR BB A% i Je 3% - - B E R AR
MzBEEENSHREGEARYE
17,588,000 7T ( R Fff7+ 12 ]2 13) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBAER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELATRFIALH0RR TR EBSH ¢
2014 2013
—E—lE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

(a) Finance costs (a) MTFRE
Interest expense on bank loans and AR AFNBHEZIRTT
interest-bearing borrowings EREEEEENTE
wholly repayable within five years Bz 13,617 8,495
Less: Interest expense capitalised B BATERETIRER
into construction in progress* BRI B (2,291) (3,032)
11,326 5,463
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.48% BE-T-MFF-A=F+—ALFE
(2013: 4.14%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2014, MEBEMADRI48%(—F— =4
4.14%) FERE R -
2014 20183
—F—mF ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARET T
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRE
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fa o TENREMET 30,456 24,896
Contributions to defined TR RGR RET IR
contribution retirement schemes 3,367 4,224

33,823 29,120
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(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BRBIANER (2
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: (continued) BIERTRFILIR TS EEEH  (8)
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the RIEFENBEBSEELLER  AEE
PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in defined URHPBNEEL2Mb T ERENN T
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) HFEKRERNGE(TBERBTE) Bt
organised by the local authorities whereby the entities are EHRERAREE T NER_T—=
required to make contributions to the Schemes based on a F+ZA=ZT+—HBLEFEREEREES
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries during the years BE—EB D LbmB B EEL R - &
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. Contributions to the BREFEEENEFNSEES - RIZEEH
Schemes vest immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement HEl 0 WA MRRE B BERKREF higE
benefits of existing and retired employees are payable by the FrEIEEEESN  REEHRIN XE
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no further BEfgE— DT -
obligations beyond the annual contributions.
2014 2013
—E—mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
(c) Otheritems (c) Hf\H
Cost of inventories* (note 19(b)) FERA (B 19(0b)) 522,818 323,317
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MERETE
plant and equipment 15,196 10,142
Amortisation of lease prepayments GE=SENEN 1,057 1,337
Operating lease charges for MELERZH
properties 2,256 2,090
Research and development costs 3% B AN 28,894 19,572
Auditors’ remuneration %S B & 1,270 1,597
# Cost of inventories includes RMB40,742,000 (2013: # HE-_Z-—NM&E+-_A=1+—HBIF

RMB28,749,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 relating to
staff costs, depreciation and research and development costs,
which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types
of expenses.

& FERABIEARK40,742,0007C
(ZZ—=%: AR28,749,0007T) 2
BRETIRAR  FERMERE - BE
SEME AR Lk 6b) 3t T8
ZERAXEBRBNRSEN
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved
e B R R R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBEBRRANFEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ FelBEmiRANHIERE
profit or loss represents:
2014 2013
—E—plE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Current tax — PRC corporate ENHIRTE — hES¥MRER
income tax
Provision for the year FRNEAE 18,078 30,803
Withholding tax — the PRC R — PE
Dividend withholding tax A& B FEHF = 521
Deferred tax BIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary — E4 NiE[OEEEE
differences (note 18(b)) (K7 18(b) 266 1,482
18,344 32,806

AEFELRERAT
e
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved
e B R R R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBR@mRANFAEHR@)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b)

28 TR R 5T B B A
SEE R M SR

2014 2013
—E—plE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Profit before taxation R B BT Vi ) 109,154 157,227
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  FRFATEF A ZEFE -

calculated at the rates applicable RB RIS AR

in the tax jurisdictions concerned EANMREGTE (M)

(note () 28,011 41,197
Effect of PRC tax concession (note (i) B BB R (KL (i) (9,887) (9,776)
PRC dividend withholding tax (note (iv)) = EIf% B F80F: (K77 (iv) 516 131
Effect of utilising tax losses BB FERER

not recognised in prior years REasEnTE (56) -
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR & 2,135 3,004
Effect of research and development MEFA X Itk EN T2

expense bonus deduction (note (i) (&% (i) (2,375) (1,750)
Actual tax expense FRR AR 18,344 32,806

Notes:

(i) The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate

income tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant jurisdictions

respectively.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group

did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Bfat

AEE[E By AP BB A B AR 25% A TE
EHMPBRLEMEH - SHERER
b o

RE M BDEER M ERRMNBIES 5
RAMAFERNBITEEREAHE -

BE-_Z-—NFER=-Z—=F1+=A
=+—HIEFE - AEEYNERRAES
MEENEBROEMERBEHN - 8L
ERBEBFIGH RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

NN R RS E D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(i)

)

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”) qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2013, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate of
15% for a period of three years from 2013 to 2015.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, qualified research and development expenses are
subject to income tax deductions at 150% on the amount actually
incurred.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the
tax arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations, a
qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial owner”
and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC enterprise is
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 5%. The Group’s subsidiary in
Hong Kong is a qualified Hong Kong tax resident and therefore
entitled a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of distribution
of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only recognised to the extent that such profits are
expected to be distributed through dividend payment by the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2014, deferred tax liabilities not recognised relating to
the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to
overseas holding company amounted to RMB278,022,000 (2013:
RMB204,336,000).

7

GEBEZIRANFEHR 2

(b) ¥Rt E /I
S E R R EER - (@)

et - (&)

(i)

(i)

)

BEANER B ZFREPBEIDLE
FRSBOR R EABRDA MR R L ES S
mig (R i) MR E?
B BR-F-=FE_FT-hF=F
HEBEZE 15% N EBEMSHTE -

TR R B FE TS Bk R EARRE AR -
AERMENIAIRERELESEN
150% R FT1SH

R B EAGBUARERRER -
FPEERREERTBEEREERA
ZTT ) N\F—F— BRI 5 A6 8
Yo s BB IR 10% M R AR TR - 1
T GRA 2 BEfE R R B S 1R ©
HRIE B A B E B RITTRE 2 M8
BB RAMZER  §RFREMCEN
[EaEA A LH5H 25% A LRI
BERBEAVRBRERAIZERRME
5% ° AEEREBNMBARAEER
BRRBER - AU ZERBIENH
5%

FR R AN SR B AT R 3 TR A S B S R B £
B 2 ) 033 ) ) 0 BB e B RS - BURSE
BEaEEATESHRN A R REBAE
EFERBARXHRETDIKNE R
HEHARER  RZT—NF+=A
=+—8 ARAEEFRAMNBERAAMN
TEHIMERR N ) E R 5 K i M 6 R HERRIE
ERIEE E R AR 278,022,0007T (=
T—=4% : AR%¥204,336,0007T) °

EBREERERAT

T-MEEHR

R
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved
e B R R R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of RIEFT BB R AED(F622F) R =5
Schedule Il to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. T8IEIRTE - W ER BB R aMEH (F32
622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong E)FE161ERTE EFFHFNEZLT -

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

2014
~Z-mE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
g 2R
Rl ENHG BETEL  BWAERRR by

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTRT  AR%TT  AE®TT  ARRTRT  ARRTR

Executive directors BiiES
Wu Zheyan REE 1,073 - 30 7 1,110
Wu Qingshan REU 216 - 20 7 243
Xie Qingmei #Ex 144 - 14 7 165
1,433 - 64 21 1,518
Non-executive directors FUTES
Wu Dongping RET 144 - 12 7 163
Lee Kong Wai, Conway FER 368 - - - 368
512 - 12 7 531
Independent non-executive directors BiIFH{TESE
Lam Hin Chi ERG 95 - - - 95
Jin Zhongwei $ER 98 - - - 98
Su Wengiang B A 98 - - - 98
291 - - - 291
2,236 - 76 28 2,340
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

NN R RS E D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

8 EEFHFMw=)

2013
—E-=F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors”  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e RER
Lok ENila BETA RGBSR gt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETT
Executive directors BHITEE
Wu Zheyan REE 360 - - 7 367
Wu Qingshan REW 216 - - 7 223
Xie Qingmei ENES 144 - - 7 151
720 - - 21 741
Non-executive director FHTES
Wu Dongping REY 144 - - 7 151
Independent non-executive directors HiFH{TEE
Lam Hin Chi BEE 93 - - - %
Jin Zhongwei t8A % - - - %
Su Wengiang B R % - - - 9%
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, R . o8
1,158 - - 28 1,186

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement

under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2014 and

2013.

REE-_Z—NER-_ZE—Z=ZF+_H
=t+—HLFE TEEHEREZESHT
TP E O P B A 0] S = BB A Sk
FEFTEIFRIE - ERRSIEEINBEAREER
IR MBAEEREZNES - SIERBBE
B -REZ_ZE—NEFR-T—=F+=
R=+—BILHE EFHEREEMAE
P E SR B R E T A -

AEFELRERAT
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)
e B R R R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST BEEEHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2013: HE-_FT-—NF+-_A=+—HIFE"
three) are directors for the year ended 31 December 2014, hEsEaRFMALTH = 2RES(ZZ
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of —=ZF:=ZF) BRENFHHNAW FSH
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2013: two) BB TITMEALT(ZE—=F: WE)HW
individuals are as follows: BRI T
2014 2013
—E—pmE —ET—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Salaries and other emoluments e Ko H b BN 1,424 1,792
Retirement scheme contributions RIREF B R 13 10
1,437 1,802
The emoluments of the two individuals (2013: two individuals) MEBESTFMALT(ZE—=F  WEZ)D
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: HIN T T3 EE -
2014 2013
—E—mE =%
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB N -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 2 1,500,000 7% 7T = 1
2 2
10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 AARERFE AEGRER

SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company include a loss of RMB6,291,000 (2013:
RMB1,757,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

RATE=EAAEBLGRE SN EEER
ARM6,201,0000(ZE—=F: AR
1,757,0007T) * #ZEHEE R AR A %5
KAFRIE ©
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a P BEmRM T

o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB90,810,000 (2013:
RMB124,421,000) and weighted average of 1,141,438,000
shares (2013: 1,000,000,000 shares) in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2014, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

’éﬂ’i%ﬁiﬂ
HE_Z-—HNF+_A=1+T—HILFEHD
HXEZK@%IJB&%i_?fEEJr_H
=+ RIEFENRARERTEAES
m A AR #90,810,000 L (ZE—=4F : A
R#124,421,0007T) * A % 1,141,438,000
BB 31T (= Z— =4 : 1,000,000,000
MR&tn ) e pniE T BET B - FIT ¢

ERELGOpILE RSk

Number of shares

Bin&H
2014 2013
—E—mE =5
’000 ‘000
T Fhx
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—HREBETEBER 1,000,000 1,000,000
Effect of issue of shares upon placingon W=Z—MN&EXA =+/5H
26 June 2014 (note 28(c)(i)) Bl ERBITIRO AT E
(Kt &t 28(c)()) 103,013 -
Effect of issue of shares upon placingon R _—ZE—HE+ A+ AEER
7 October 2014 (note 28(c)(ii)) BT B R 2E ([ 51 28(c)(ii)) 38,425 -
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ A=+ —HRNE@ERK
shares at 31 December DkEE5 &) 1,141,438 1,000,000

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the years

HREZ2 T NFAR-_ZT—=F+_A4

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 and, therefore, diluted =t —HIFEWEBTEETLRE - K
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per BREE RN EGREARZNER -
share.
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NN R RS E D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ SBHRSN » AN BREZIR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRH

The Group yiNg=
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
#R & RE
BF PEREE HERER RifE RE ERIR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARWTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT AR%TT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=§-Hf-AH 67,769 2,538 25,151 3,181 4,906 41,519 145,064
Additions RE 3,033 1,047 27,100 1,136 1,174 57,548 91,038
Transfers R 84,857 - 3,124 - - (87,981) -
Disposals in respect of land REEBLRE
resumption (note 5(b)) (Hizt5m) (9,474) - (3,558) (851) - - (13,883)
Disposals HE - - - - (235) - (235)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%
+ZR=t-R 146,185 3,585 51,817 3,466 5,845 11,086 221,984
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE—-F—H 146,185 3,585 51,817 3,466 5,845 11,086 221,984
Additions AE 2,473 2,058 10,869 792 227 94,413 110,832
Transfers R 19,213 - - - - (19,213) -
Disposals fe - - - - 97) - (97)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT-ME
+-A=t+-8 167,871 5,643 62,686 4,258 5,975 86,286 332,719
Accumulated depreciation: BiirE:
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=%#-F-A 8917 137 5,201 1,454 2,221 - 17,930
Charge for the year FRZHE 3,893 1,556 3,639 440 614 - 10,142
Written back on disposals in respect B2 58 i
of land resumption (note 5(b)) (Hiat50) (2,395) - (1,531) (309) - - (4,235)
\Written back on disposals HER T - - - - (156) - (156)
At 31 December 2013 ittt s
+=A=+-H 10,415 1,693 7,309 1,585 2,679 - 23,681
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mF-A—-A 10,415 1,693 7,309 1,585 2,679 - 23,681
Charge for the year ERNTHE 7,467 862 5,366 665 836 - 15,196
Written back on disposals HEREE - - - - (93) - (93)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE
+=A=+-8 17,882 2,555 12,675 2,250 3422 - 38,784
Net book value: WRESE:
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WE
+=A=1+-A 149,989 3,088 50,011 2,008 2,553 86,286 293,935
At 31 December 2013 AZE-ZfF
+-A=t+-8 135,770 1,892 44,508 1,881 3,166 11,086 198,303
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y%¥  BERRZE®

(Continued)

Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC. NRPENEFREEER - RZE—MF
At 31 December 2014, buildings with net book value of +tTZA=+—B EEFEAARE
RMB92,200,000 (2013: RMB52,784,000) and plant and 92,200,000 L (=T —=% : AR# 52,784,000
machinery with net book value of RMB50,102,000 (2013: )BT REREFEAARKES0,102,0007T(=
RMB9,413,000) were pledged to banks for certain banking T4 ARM09,413,0007T) IR E M i 22
facilities granted to the Group (see note 25(c)). BIRAEAREENE TROMENER (FR

B35 25(c)) °

EZEZEZRERDE 115
T -FEFER
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 HEFENRK
The Group
*EH
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARKETT

Cost: B :
At 1 January n—HA—H 54,605 67,901
Disposals in respect of land resumption  EzIB 74 &8 + b U

(note 5(b)) (Ftat 5(b)) = (9,246)
Disposals & = (4,050)
At 31 December Rt+—B=1+—H 54,605 54,605
Accumulated amortisation: L4 e
At 1 January n—A—H 2,202 2,354
Charge for the year FRZH 1,057 1,337
Written back on disposals in respect of  RIEH 78+ Ui A % E

land resumption (note 5(b)) (Ktat5m) - (1,300)
Written back on disposals H e B B o] - (183)
At31December ~~ ~ RT=A=t—-H 3,289 2:202
Net book value: IREPE :
At 31 December R+-A=+—H 51,346 52,403
Represented by: Bp:
Current portion BREREL 5 1,056 1,096
Non-current portion JERNEREE > 50,290 51,307

51,346 52,403
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZHETII + UAREZT)

13

14

LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land. These
leases expire between 2047 and 2062.

At 31 December 2014, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB51,346,000 (2013: RMB52,403,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 25(c)).

NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction
in progress and buildings. An analysis of non-current
prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
is as follows:

13

14

HEBRNSFR®E)

ST ABUS IR P B+ +
{5 FRAR T 2 A MO BRAS + DA B+ 32
BREBMERERA - WERER -
M+ EZ TN EEF o

R-ZT—NE+-_A=+—8 EELE
AARHS1,8346,000L(Z2—=F : AR
& 52,403,000 7T ) 89+ Hh{E FAAE B R AR SR B
wE TRITREER FRT(RMEE25(0) °

WEEMZE - BB KRB IR
TN

ZeBIERERTREETEN - I
B BE R EOENEEN RS
T -

The Group
*EKH
2014 2013
—Z—@mF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AEBTT
Prepayment for acquisition of WHE M E M TER R (5T @)
a property (note (a)) 23,250 23,250
Prepayment for acquisition of U i — 3 - s A TE A SR (BT 3 (0)
a piece of land (note (b)) 4,661 -
Prepayment for construction of BIEG A BEMATBN K (M ()
manufacturing complex (note (c)) 7,965 -
Prepayment for dwelling and SEEE A+ pb A A B FEAS 3k (Bt R (d))
levelling cost (note (d)) - 27,240
Prepayment for other constructions and ~ EiEEA KLY E - BE KR
property, plant and equipment EOREERE-N 12,435 812
48,311 51,302
ZEREEZERERAT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

14 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 22 July 2013, Zhangping Kimura entered into an agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Vendor”) for
the purchase of a property located at No. 996, Dong Huan Road, Jing
Cheng Street, Zhangping City, Fujian province (the “Property”) for a
consideration of RMB46,500,000. Zhangping Kimura paid
RMB23,250,000 to the Vendor on the same date as a deposit pursuant to
the terms of the Acquisition Agreement. The remaining portion of the
consideration will be paid to the Vendor at different stages after the
completion of the construction of the Property. At 31 December 2014, the
construction of the Property has not yet been completed and the deposit
payment of RMB23,250,000 (2013: RMB23,250,000) is included as non-
current prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) On 26 December 2014, Zhangping Kimura entered into an agreement (the
“Land Acquisition Agreement”) with Zhangping City Bureau of Land and
Resources (“Bureau of Land and Resources”) for the purchase of a piece
of land (“Land A”) adjacent to Zone C of the Group’s manufacturing
complex of approximately 75,037 square meters for a consideration of
RMB12,010,000. Zhangping Kimura has paid RMB4,661,000 to Bureau
of Land and Resources as a deposit pursuant to the terms of the Land
Acquisition Agreement. The remaining portion of the consideration will be
paid to Bureau of Land and Resources in two installments pursuant to the
terms of the Land Acquisition Agreement.

(c) On 29 December 2014, Zhangping Kimura entered into a construction
contract (the “Construction Contract”) with an independent construction
company (the “Construction Company”) for the construction of production
plants in Zone C of the Group’s manufacturing complex of approximately
105,000 square meters for an aggregate consideration of
RMB152,020,000. Zhangping Kimura has paid RMB61,172,000 to the
Construction Company pursuant to the terms of the Construction
Contract, comprising RMB7,965,000 and RMB53,207,000 as non-current
prepayment for property, plant and equipment and construction in
progress, respectively.

14 WYX BERKREWIELD
EEEEENEE )

GEE

@

RZZE—=FtA=-+=-8 BEFANE—ZE
YE=FTEFDRBEURNEREETTE
PRATIE RIRER 996 SRV 3 ([ 2 W% 1) FT L
(TWeiE R ) - 1B ARY 46,500,0007T © 15
BUEE R Z OG- BEANRE B ZFARE
23,250,000 TTIER® © RIBHIEID D HZ W
TREREEAESDBRBRIN o RZT—MEF
TZA=+—RB  ZWEEENRRT - B
RARKE23,250000(ZFE—=F: AR¥
283,250,000 7T ) R & BI IS K R AR D A U
B - BB &R EOIERVETAR K -

RZZ—NFE+ZAZ+RE  FEANEET
TEIERB(ELERB)MBEAEER
& RERCIR MBI — 18 475,037 F k8 L i
(T AN — i ([ LB EHZED - R
B8R AR 12,010,0007C ° & F AN BERE L
WEEHEGEROBELIERBINARYE
4,661,000 TTHERIRE o (BB T D EBRE
THBEREO GRS MBS TELERS -

REZZ—WF+—A=Z+hH  EBFANE—R
BYRBEAR(ZERADRREAEEDN
105,000 F 77 K B4R & BLE M C 12 | B2 A FE i
BRI AR(BIAR]  BREAARE
152,020,000 7T ° & F AR B iR 53 T A& [ 5K
FEEAR T FARE61,172,0007T © BFA
R #7,965,000 7T &2 A R # 53,207,000 705 51 51
ROE - BERREARTEZIRIIEENETEN

Eod
K °
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14 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

15

(@

In February 2013, Zhangping Kimura entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with the developer of Fushan Industrial Zone which is
authorised by the relevant land authorities (the “Developer”) that granted
Zhangping Kimura the right to commence dwelling and levelling activities
on Land A in Zone C of the Group’s manufacturing complex. The Group
has incurred dwelling and levelling costs on Land A of approximately
RMB27,240,000 at 31 December 2013. At 31 December 2013, since the
land auction procedure has not been commenced by the relevant land
authorities, the Group was unable to enter into the procedure for procuring
the relevant land use right certificate of Land A and the amount is included
as non-current prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

At 31 December 2014, Zhangping Kimura has entered into Land
Acquisition Agreement with Bureau of Land and Resources for the
purchase of Land A (see note 14(b)) and the balance of dwelling and
levelling costs incurred on Land A is included in construction in progress.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

14 WIEYE BERKREWIELD
EEEEENEE )

FaE - (%)

@

RZB—=F-F ZPANELEHRLIHER
BN IXRERE((ZRE D ITLHBHE
(M) - BT EFANEMFEBEARBRER
ARERCEN A FHRBFELMTE - B
ZE-=F+ZA=+—H  AEEFIIMAE
AR AR A AR B 27,240,0007T © 7=
T—=F+-A=+—8 AEMLTERBEE
FIA T IAEIR T - AN ERAEHIEIR T ARG
T A Z ARRA L E AR - MARR @ RERT A
B - BB &R EOIERVETER K

RZF—OFE+A=+—H EPFAHNEEL
ERBFI L REHBEABE AR
14(0)) - T LHAEEZ FR LMK AR A
TR -

15 REE D RERS

The Group
FEHE
2014
—E—MmE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

Share of net assets

G EEFE

631 -

AEFELRERAT
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15 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate are as follows:

15 REEATER ®)
AR BB A T S E T

Proportion of
ownership interest

FREEERLE
Place of Group’s
establishment Particulars of effective Held by  Principal
Name of associate and operation paid up capital interest a subsidiary  activity
ERE
BELTER BIUREEHE, BEREFHE ERESE HMBLRARE IEED
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB2,000,000 45% 45%  Trading of imported
(“Lvyuan’) R AR timber
TEFREHBRRA ([4R]) 2,000,000 7¢ BEEOAMN

Lvyuan is accounted for using the equity method in the SRR RS TSR NERAEREAR -

consolidated financial statements.

Summary of financial information of the associate: ZHE N NTIMYBERRBE

2014
—E—mE
RMB’000
AR®TT
Gross amounts of the associate’s NSNS ECE e
Assets BE 8,713
Liabilities = (6,713)
Equity M= 2,000
Revenue WA 1,801
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year — FEEE &2 mE IS E%E =
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the associate 57K £ B JAR & A TR a5 4T BR
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BN R EEFEER 2,000
Group’s effective interest REBMERER 45%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate REEEEBENRNEEFE 900
Elimination of share of unrealised profits arising from K5 E(EH & AR REFSESE
unsold inventories of the associate Z AR B F (269)
Carrying amount in the consolidated RiEE M BmENREE
financial statements 631
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16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 Hftem&EE
The Group
*KE
2014 2013
—E—plE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREEFIT
Available-for-sale equity securities: TJ#tHEREES :
Unlisted equity securities, at cost A ETRARES » LKA 2,495 2,495
The above financial assets represent investment in equity FiieMEERNTPEBREAEET MM
securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian RITWBEAEHFRE - ZREHRARTL
Province. The investment does not have a quoted price in an AMERERMSLERERE N TESE
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value AR SEATE -
cannot be reliably measured.
17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 RB AR ER
The Company
. 3/
2014 2013
—Z—@mF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBEFT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRRAD - AR = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUT P B A 71 ZIE 356,181 117,306
356,181 117,306
The investment cost represented the investment in Green # & R 7K 8 7 Green Oceans Investment
Oceans Investment Holdings Limited of 10 United States Dollars Holdings Limited = & &) 10E L ([EL]) ©
(“usb”).
ZEREEZERERAT
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17 RAMIB AR ER (@)
EWHBATZEAEER e AEE
TR o B E ISR B A R ZER
BIERDEER [HHBATMER] 1t
Ty el B 0 2 4 B BRI A A SR A
ER%+ I AREB N ERE -

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The directors regard
amounts due from subsidiaries as non-current assets and as
“interests in subsidiaries” as they do not intend to request
repayment of these amounts from the subsidiaries within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of shares EREKBARNFEBERIDOT - BRBHE=T

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BASN - PTISE BRI AT @A o
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of ST
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ e i B g
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRITRARE
30T A AT V43t
LFER HERAH ok 31 B ME IEEH
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI") USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ EBELEE 10 &1 ERIR A REER
Limited ((%BRLES])
—T——F+-AtH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Limited 5 August 2010 wooden products
KA (EE) ERBRAF Bk 10,000 HEP ISR
—2-Z5)\ATA
Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
(notes (i) and (i) 17 December 1995 RMB250,000,000 sales of outdoor
wooden products
RN E L) i FER EREEPIAHER
—NAFTZA++R  ARM250,000,0007T
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 RHE R RRIRERS (2)

Attributable
equity interest

held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b NGt
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ 313
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITRME
ML B #s/EMEF

LFER HERAH ok 3 MHE IEXH

Zhangping Kimura Merry Garden ~ The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Engaged in projects of
Wooden Structure Design and 12 June 2010 RMB1,000,000 outdoor wooden
Installation Co., Ltd. products including
(notes (i) and i) the provision of

design and
installation services

BEMANEEREAREERE i HMER HEPIMRERER
RERBNR (W) & (i) “Z-TFXATZH AR 1,000,0007T BERERT R

RRRG

Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (ii)) through self-operated

retail shops

FEZE (LB REERRT HE AER BEBERTEETE
(Hraz ) R (i) ZT-ZEZAZTmA ARKE1,000,0007 PR &

Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 14 November 2012 RMB5,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (ii)) through self-operated

retail shops

FERE(EP)REERAA HE HMER BREETEETE
(BizE ) % i) “Z——F+t-AtmAB  ARKES5000,0007T PIMRER

Merry Garden (Fuzhou) The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 5 December 2012 RMB500,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (i) through self-operated

retall shops

ZEFR (BN ZEBRBR AR HE FfER BREETEESE
(Brzt ) R (i) “E-Z#+-A1H AR #500,0007T PSR

AEFELRERAT
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 RMIBARNRER @)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of FOFIRE
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ i1
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITRME
BT A g AT B/ 2fEk
LAFER HwERAH ok EE HE IEXH
Merry Garden (Sanming) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 19 December 2012 RMB500,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (i) through self-operated
retall shops
ZEFR(CR)REERAF i AR BREETEESE
(Biz i) % i) ZZ-ZF+ZATHhE  AR¥5000007T FOMRER
Merry Garden (US) Inc. The United States 100 share of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
of America USD1 each wooden products
10 January 2013
Merry Garden (US) Inc. e 100 RER 1 ETHR HEF ISR
“¥-=f-AfA
Zhangping Merry Garden Import The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of
("MG Import and Export’) outdoor wooden
(note (i) and (i) products
BIMEBREELNERAR HhE AER AESREERI
([XEBZEELO)) ZT-=FZAZf+tB  AR%30,000,0007 R
(et i) % i)
Merry Garden (Australia) Australia 1 share at - 100%  Investment holding
Pty. Ltd. 10 April 2014 Australian Dollar 1
Merry Garden (Australia) R 1RETRT RAER
Pty. Ltd. “E-mFEMATH :ofvan)
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BT 15 R My et

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B R5)

F UAREEST)

17 RE ARV RER (@)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of NG
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FE{h A iE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERTREE
B30T A AT g%/ 2fEE
INGE WER A :of:3 Ef ME EEEH
Merry Garden Biomass Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
Energy Holdings Limited 10 October 2014
ZEFEENERRERERAR AR 11 Rark
“E-WETATH
Zhangping Merry Garden The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
Biomass Energy 31 March 2014 of RMB30,000,000 sales of renewable
Development Ltd. (note (iv)) energy products
BYTEEREENELR HE HRIEEN EEREERE
BREBRDR (W) “T-ME=FA=+-A  ARH30,0000007 RERER
Notes: BiaE -
i This entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC. i) hERARPBERIMNINGBERE -
(ii) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and (ii) SERANHERINHEREERTREFEAR

are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(iii) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The

official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a

wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export.

NE’U%ﬁM‘TEA ae

ZERE
SURSE

MEFLWERSE - AEAZREUG

(v) ZERR—RARTERIZERARTEREER
EfEH A2 ENBRR

AEFELRERAT
e
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 RAGZEHBMRRRPHAMER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group REEH
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REEBBIRRRTHENEBERE

financial position represents:

2014 2013

—Z2—mE =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
At 1 January n—A—H 20,517 10,015
Charged to profit or loss FFAEZEE 18,078 31,324
PRC corporate income tax paid B ESEREH (9,397) (20,822)
At 31 December Wwt+-—A=+—H 29,198 20,517
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18

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

18 MRS UBRR R BFEHR

(%)

REE (#)
CDRANEEHEEERAE

(b)

FARERE PR RS B HERIE
EREEE/(AE)FHREDHM

position and the movements during the year are as N
follows:
Unrealised
gain on PRC
Unrealised derivative dividend
Deferred profits on financial  withholding Interest
income inventories instruments tax capitalisation Total
fiEam
FRH IA#H FERE
RERA FERBT FERRE R 1LY X4 &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT ARETR
Deferred tax arising from: BERERE :
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-f—H 5,990 214 3 (1,060) - 5,112
(Charged)/credited to profitor ~ (¥18) /3t A B&%
loss (note 7(a)) (Bi376) (1,17) 12 (246) (131) - (1,482)
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=F
T-A=1+-H 4,873 226 (278) (1,191) - 3,630
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-A—-H 4873 226 [278) (1,191) - 3,630
Credited/(charged) to profitor 5 A /(18) B#%
loss (note 7(a)) (B 7)) 299 @) 335 (516) (343 (266)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IF
T-A=+-H 5172 185 57 (1,707) (343) 3,364

AEFELRERAT
e
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 REEHMBMRRKRPPFABR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) REE ()
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERIANEZHEZEERARG(E)
(Continued)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial RERE M BERRRAEERNAT -
position:
2014 2013
Qg —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR#ETT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in AR & BN R T RER
the consolidated statement of ERIEEEFE
financial position 5,414 4,821
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R 4 BT TSR R P ERR K
the consolidated statement of ERIBAEFE
financial position (2,050) (1,191)
3,364 3,630
19 INVENTORIES 19 FE&
(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of @ REEZEeHBRAXRFRF
financial position comprise: BEE
The Group
.30
2014 2013
—Z—QlE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBETT
Raw materials R4 178,445 82,925
Work in progress RS 35,293 26,843
Finished goods RIBK TR 83,790 81,941
297,528 191,709
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19

INVENTORIES (Continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

19

recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

FE@#®)

b) BEERAEA T AED

MFEBOMIT

The Group
*TEE
2014 2013
—E—mE =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TFT AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENEmE 522,818 323,317

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20 ESZRHEHMEKRFIE

The Group The Company
50 XN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mF =5 —2-MmF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT AR®TR ARBFT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REYGIE R EREE 192,329 103,712 - -
Trade receivable from an associate  fEUREE S A RN E 5 78 8,100 - - -
Amount due from a related company  JEUREEE A B 2B
(note 30(c)) (Kt:#30(c)) - 6,155 - -
Total trade receivables B oW IEAE 200,429 109,867 - -
Prepayment for raw materials R RHER 3 62,938 27,847 - -
Deposits and other prepayments B REMBERAR 2,459 1,661 399 301
Derivative financial instruments ITHESBIE (:310)
(note 31(d) 867 2,071 - -
Gross amount due from customers  [EWEF AR L2 4
for contract work (note (j) (Hizx0) 2,781 3,040 - -
VAT recoverable EIdERE 5,112 16,291 - -
Other receivables H it e HIE 4,074 1,595 = -
278,660 162,372 399 301
ZEREEZERERAT
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 B 5 R HfhREWRIE #)

Note:

(i) The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses to date, included in the gross amount due from
customers for contract work at 31 December 2014 was RMB21,108,000
(2013: RMB19,477,000). This balance includes retention receivables at 31
December 2014 of RMB1,582,000 (2013: RMB1,533,000), of which
RMB386,000 (2013: RMB337,000) was expected to be recovered after
more than one year.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from those balances
specified in (i) above, are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis
As at 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on invoice date and net of
allowances of doubtful debts, is as follows:

0] R-ZT—NF+-—A=+—HNEKEFARL
BREENDEEELRRENEEREFREE
EHMNEHERERAARE 21,108,000t (= F
— =% : AR#¥19,477,0007T) ° WEHBIER
—EOF+ A=+ BENRBERFTEAR
#1,682,000 T (=T — =4 : AR% 1,533,000
Jo) + HR AR®386,000 T (ZT—=F : AR
#337,0007T) FAHIE R —F & Uk E o

Br EXX()VIEANZ S AR BB E
5 R E M EUWFIEAR R —F AU @ R
R -

@) BREGOMT
R-EBE—NE+-_A=+—8 ' &%
ZEHTHBRRREBIENE S RUGK
HMERER (B ABS REME
WERIE) BREE D ATRA T -

The Group
*EH
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Within 1 month R1EAR 88,706 65,411
1to 2 months 1228 A 43,930 21,222
2 to 3 months 22 3{@A 31,800 12,446
Over 3 months BiE3EA 35,993 10,788

200,429 109,867

Trade and bills receivables are normally due within 15
days to 3 months from the date of billing. Further details
of the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 31(a).

BZ RN TR MR EE RN A
HEHBE15BE3EA NI -
BERASBEEERRNE SR
RHIEE31(a) ©
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F UAREEST)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuved) 20 B S R HttEUWFIE &)
(o) Trade debtors that are not impaired (o) TERENE ZREWERK

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are I B R Sk AR ERE R E 5 I

neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired are as follows:

BN EREERE SIS

The Group
x5KMH
2014 2013
—E=—mE T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TR AREET T
Current BN HA 156,405 97,764
Less than 1 month past due BAER A1 E A 43,203 11,948
1 to 3 months past due #E1 =318 A 100 3
More than 3 months but less than BHAREASEAELR
12 months past due 1218 A 573 -
More than 12 months past due wHEARE12{E AR 148 152
Amountspastdue  a@#yoa 44,024 12,108
200,429 109,867
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate R HASORUE M B U R IB O N % (T

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good

I MR RO RCER R

B HAME I MR (E B R GRS K —#E
EAEBARFEALBENBILE

track record with the Group. Based on past experience, P REBFLAR ANEEEZET
management believes that no impairment allowance is mEREY  BRAEZSEHIIE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not e - WEREREHAMZELE

been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

H

BIEHREER - AEBYLERZSF
ERE B EER A -
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21 ENTRUSTED LOANS 21 ZFREER
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has entered into three R-ZTE—NFE+_-_A=+—8 x£EE
(2013: nil) entrusted loan arrangements with an independent BER—HPERBRITEBYE =]
third party amounting to RMB6,000,000, RMB12,000,000 and = ZE—Z=ZF: E)DHEARE
RMB12,000,000, respectively, through a PRC state-owned 6,000,000 7T + AR 12,000,000 7T & AR
bank. The loans are unsecured, interest-bearing at 10% per #12,000,000 L 2 L E R - ZEE
annum and repayable within one year. The entrusted loans FREER  RFENE10%:TERAR
were neither past due nor impaired. FREE  ZFLAERRRA TR
Ao
22 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 22 BEBEXK
Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for ERTRITOFRE AERITAAEE
banking facilities and derivative financial instruments issued by EERITRE RITE SR T AMER (R
banks to the Group (see note 20, note 24 and note 25(c)). 20 * sk 24 K HI5E25(c)) °
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 fﬁ%&ﬁ%gﬁw
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the @ MNEgsd Eﬁ Bk &k MR E
consolidated statement of financial position RengarxNnRae kA
and consolidated cash flow statement EHEEMBIE
comprise:
The Group The Company
50 FAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—mE =4 —Z—mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBEFT ARBTT ARBFT
Deposits with banks and other 3847 & E #8175
financial institutions WEER 99,231 49,000 - -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 74,913 26,052 85 47
174,144 75,052 85 47

At 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB101,264,000 (2013: RMB70,804,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

RZZE—NFE+ZA=1+—80 " A&
AR#101,264,00070( = —=4F :
AR 70,804,0007T) Jh A A REE ST
B WABBEBKBEPFHRLF
Bl o ARBIUWIFATERIBRNEE

P BIPE 1 2 /B X B BUR B 8
SNEE BIEGI R TR I o
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

F UAREEST)

23 RERBAESEEN#)

(o) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (o) FRBLRDE ﬂ BB 15 (P
cash (used in)/generated from operations: ),/ FBERSERNT
The Group
*£Em
2014 2013
—Z—@mF =%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TT AREFT
Profit before taxation B 75 B S5 ) 109,154 157,227
Adjustments for: AT S BEELFAE
Interest expense FERAX 6(a) 11,326 5,463
Depreciation e 6(c) 15,196 10,142
Amortisation of lease THETE Rk o
prepayments 6(c) 1,057 1,337
Amortisation of deferred R A 8
income 26 (1,153) (4,472)
Net foreign exchange loss SN B 18 FE 2,244 1,000
Interest income A BUA 5(a) (3,446) (833)
Elimination of share of HIH B (LB A A
unrealised profits arising REFEEXZ
from unsold inventories of REAIR i A
the associate 15 269 -
Net gain on disposal of 1 i (5 A
land use right Wezk3 5 5(b) - (146)
Gain from land resumption + g RS 5(b) - (44,802)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEYE  BE &
property, plant and ;i (eas) 1R
equipment pes 5(b) (45) 4
Changes in working capital: LiEEeEE
Increase in inventories FEEM (105,809) (119,410)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 N H M W FIE
and other receivables (), E (117,209) 19,546
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 R EAMEN A
and other payables CRi) /g (5,889) 8,932
Cash (used in)/generated KEEE (A, s
from operations Be (94,305) 33,988
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

F UAREST)

24 B RHMEMNRIER

The Group The Company
F5H e 3|
2014 2013 2014 2013
k-2t —E-=F —E—-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Trade payables (note 24(a)) B G FIE (55 24(a)) 3,167 10,840 - -
Receipts in advance IR 2,015 2,736 - -
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTIA
(note 31(d) (H5#31(0) 1,247 222 - -
Amount due to a director R —2ESHE 769 - 713 -
Amount due to a related company  FEEAELA BIRIE
(note 30(c)) (K15 30(c) 283 - - -
Other payables and accruals HibERFIER
(note 24(b)) e 2 B (B 24(0) 11,875 10,139 1,696 1,179
19,356 23,937 2,409 1,179
All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one FiA Ll TR SR —FNENRIRE

year or repayable on demand.

(@) A maturity analysis of the trade payables is

as follows:

As at 31 December 2014, the maturity analysis of the
trade payables balance is as follows:

@ EFHENE
Mran T

RZZ—NF+—A=+—H8 8

XIRH) 2| 2 H

7]

2

RSB BIH R DA AT -

The Group
AKEH

2014 2013

—Z—QmE —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREEFTT

Due within 1 month or on demand 118 B R B EAE T SR ESRAE 1,970 2,317
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 1 {& 8 118 3@ 5 A E|HAE (< 1,197 8,523
3,167 10,840
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24 B RHEMEBNRIE®

(b) An analysis of the payables and accruals is (o) 7E B Efh & IE K &
as follows: HAEASWNAT :
The Group The Company
F%E F4aF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—-lmEF —T-=F Mg —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'O00  RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT AR®TT ARETT

Salaries, wages, bonus and e I8 Ak
other accrued benefits Ho A & 542 7 2,346 2567 - -
Payables for the purchase of BEWE BEX
property, plant and equipment A& (T FIR 1,608 2,473 = -
Other tax payables Hfth FERHEIE 585 1,545 - -
Professional fee payables ENEEER 1,556 1,179 1,427 1,179
Transportation fee payables ErtEEER 3,573 2,016 - -
Others Hith 2,207 359 269 -
11,875 10,139 1,696 1,179
25 BANK LOANS 25 RITER
(@ At 31 December 2014, the bank loans @ RZ—ZFT—HNmF+=H
were repayable as follows: =+—H: BEEMNRT
BT
The Group
AKH
2014 2013
—Z—mEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREET T
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 345,699 239,651
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 10,619 2,500
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEBERFR 41,000 22,597
51,619 25,097
397,318 264,748
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25 BANK LOANS (Continued) 25 BITER#E)
(o) At 31 December 2014, the bank loans b) R—_ZFT—WF + = A
were secured as follows: =+—H BEHETE
B (TN
The Group
*x5KE
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETIT
Bank loans (note 25(c)) RITE R (K177 25(c))
— secured — B 234,019 155,657
— unsecured — 163,299 109,091
397,318 264,748
(©) The amounts of banking facilities available 0 RZFT—MWF+ = H
to the Group and the utilisation at 31 =t+— B KEEAEE
December 2014 are set out as follows: RIRITRE N EFHRBR
(N
The Group
FEE
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TR ARETTT
Banking facilities available AIERMIRITRVE
— secured — B 368,425 349,107
— unsecured — M 186,604 140,236
555,029 489,343
Amounts utilised BEAeE
— bank loans — RITER 397,318 264,748
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a P BEmRM T

25 BANK LOANS (continued)

(©

The amounts of banking facilities available
to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2014 are set out as follows:
(Continued)

The secured banking facilities were secured by the
following assets with carrying values as follows:

F UABRHESR)

25 SRITEF#)

(©)

W ZZE—NF+ = H
=+—B8" ZK'EI‘M
MIRTTRHRENLESAIE
PNNENE )

BEMBITREATINEENREE
TR -

The Group
*TKH
2014 2013
—S—mE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Pledged deposits (note 22) BB EF R (Mt 22) 98,221 64,000
Buildings (note 12) g5 (K 12) 92,200 52,784
Plant and machinery (note 12) [R5 M (HfaE12) 50,102 9,413
Lease prepayments (note 13) METENR(HE13) 51,346 52,403
291,869 178,600
During 2013 and 2014, all of the Group’s banking facilities RZE-—=FR-F—MNF  r5EH

were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. The Group has an unsecured bank
loan with a carrying amount of RMB11,834,000 at 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil). The loan contains certain
ratio covenants for which the Group did not meet the net
profit ratio of not less than 20% for the year ended 31
December 2014 as stated in the loan agreement.
However, the bank did not exercise the rights to request
for early repayment nor charge additional interest to the
Group. The loan was fully repaid according to the maturity
date at 24 January 2015. Except for the above, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached during 2013 and 2014. Details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 31(b).

BT ERITRVE Y BT BB M1
FINMEELR R —RERNE TR
HIFTAABR - WA EE RZY - AIE
B EERBEREREE - ~AEE
BT RR A G AR - A&
ER—_E-—mF+-_A=+—HAK
18 A K % 11,834,000 T 79 £ K
RITER(ZZT—=F: &) - BEXE
BE T ERZY) - BAREEN mED
HEZZ—NF+ZA=+—AILF
J& 5 555 F Bb R MR 52 20% (40 B 5K 1
HATE) MBS o AT RITWEST
EREFNZRRFEENERAAEEK
HEEINFIE - ZEFNRZE—HF—

AZTHRZRIHAEEBER - R L
o R-E—=FR-_FT-—NEF -

AEEREERIMNEEEYBEER
MR - BEAERETERSESR
SR IBEEAMIFES (D)
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25 BANK LOANS (Continued) 25

(d) Included in secured and unsecured bank loans of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 were bills discounted
with recourse totalling RMB43,983,000 and
RMBS3,442,000 (31 December 2013: RMB30,396,000
and RMB19,965,000) respectively.

26 DEFERRED INCOME 26

The movements of deferred income are as follows:

RITER @)

(d) R-B-—mE+-A=+—8 4%
B IR R IR T R B E AR
EHEUEBRERSBNAH AR
43,983,000 7T & A R #% 3,442,000 7T
(ZB—=F+=-A=+—8: AR
#30,396,000 7t &2 A R ¥ 19,965,000

TT) °
EZEWA
RIEW A E 0T -
The Group
xEE
2014 2013
—E—plE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&EsH 19,493 23,965
Additions during the year FRRE 2,350 -
Government grant recognised in profit RIBRRERAEHMUT AR
or loss as other revenue (note 5(a)) B Bk (FY 7 5(0) (1,153) (4,472)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HN&H% 20,690 19,493
Represented by: Bp:
Current portion BREREL 5 1,163 1,179
Non-current portion JEBNEREE > 19,627 18,314
20,690 19,493

Deferred income represented government subsidies that
compensated the Group for the cost of its land use right and
the cost of infrastructure development which are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
assets (note 5(a)).

BT AR TR - AR AR E AR E R

T ERERARERREERRA - R

BEMAEAFHANRRFMNESERNA
R (MizE5()
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27 NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING 27 ¥ERBFTEEN
BORROWINGS
(@) The analysis of the carrying amount of @ FERBEFEBRERAEEZ
non-current interest-bearing borrowings is DT
as follows:
The Group The Company
FE£E FaH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—S—mE —T-=F —T—-MmE —2—=
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT UN: 5 v ARETT

Bank loans (note 25) RITER (M5 25)
— secured — B 30,000 25,097 - -
— unsecured — EIE 21,619 - - -
51,619 25,097 - -
Unsecured debentures 5% 2017 Z85% ) -FT—+F
(note 27(b)) BRAES
(Hist27b) 15,778 - 15,778 -
67,397 25,097 15,778 -
(b) Significant terms and repayment schedule (o) FEIRITIER ZEEANER K
of non-bank borrowings EiELHE
Debentures =3
The Group has entered into agreements with two AREFBDHMELE=FHEAG L
individual third parties issuing unsecured debentures with 3% B (72N 4 £820,000,000% 7T 89
principal amounting to HK$20,000,000. The debentures WK ES - HEESIRE B 5%
are bearing interest at 5% per annum, unsecured and g AEEEBBEEN_ZE—+F N\ A
repayable on 29 August 2017. —+hBEE-
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

X RERKRE
BRAEERAHRRS B MBI REEK

]
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out MREBH RN G EEREB K - AR A

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of EREBSTOINFVINERNEES BN
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity T~

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

I
N

Y

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HEZEOoHE

The Company FIN/NE|
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
Bx BinigR ERGR RHER wana
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%FT AER%FT AER%FT AE®TRT AE®TT
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-S-=5—-fF—Am#R 8,135 126,262 (433) (1,518) 132,446
Changes in equity for 2013: ZE-ZENEREN:
Loss for the year EREE - - - (1,757) (1,787)
Other comprehensive income Hip2 A - - (3,674) - (3,674)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2AUREE - - (3,674) (1,757) (5,431)
Dividends approved and paid in respect BRARBERRIRG -
of the previous year MBRETHY - (10,540) - - (10,540)
Balance at 31 December 2013 and pAZE-Z£+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2014 —Z-mE-F-AHER 8,135 115,722 4,107) (3.275) 116475
Changes in equity for 2014: ZE-MERHEREE:
Loss for the year FRFE - - - (6,291) (6,291)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERE - - (1,060) - (1,060)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENELEE - - (1,080) (6,291) (7,351)
Issue of shares upon placing EERTIRA 2,918 236,753 - - 239,671
Dividends approved and paid in respect BEFECHER
of the previous year BRkE - (10,317) - - (10,317)
Balance at 31 December 2014 —E-ME+ZBS+—-AmES 11,063 342,158 (5,167) (9,566) 338,478
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(Continued)
Dividends

(b)

U

(i)

Dividends payable and proposed to equity 0]

F UAREEST)

b) KB

28 B - HERKRE ®)

RTINFERNERERAR

shareholders of the Company attributable to the AERFEENRERRE
year: 1% -
2014 2013
—E—plE T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Final dividend proposed after the end & iR 18 2R IR 2
of the reporting period of HK$0.005  REARR B &R & @A
(equivalent to approximately 0.005 % 7T (FHE R
RMB0.004) per ordinary share AR 0.004 1)
(2013: HK$0.013 (equivalent to (ZZ—=4:
approximately RMB0.0103) 0.013% T (HER
per ordinary share) AR 0.01037T)) 5,409 10,317
The final dividend proposed after the end of the AR 4 HA S 14 52 2 R B¢ ) 5k HA
reporting period has not been recognised as a Bg B R RSB B R ER AR
liability at the end of the reporting period. & o
Bonus Issue iR 42 §T RS

The Board also proposed that bonus shares will be
issued on the basis of one bonus share for every
100 Shares held to shareholders after the end of the

reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the )
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year:

EEGNMRARERREZAR
AT B 100 B I3 — Pk
ALNR 2 EAEREATALIR o

AR BRREHE I BORAS 7 £ — {3
MRERENARRIERTA

ARRE
2014 2013
:§_$ — i 7$
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Final dividend in respect of the previous R 724 & Rtk /& KR T
financial year, approved and paid — B B FE
during the year, of HK$0.013 RHARR B B E AR
(equivalent to approximately 0.013%BT(HER
RMB0.0103) per ordinary share #HARB0.01037T)
(2013: HK$0.013 (equivalent to (ZZ2—=
approximately RMB0.0105) 0.013% T (HER
per ordinary share) AE®0.01057T)) 10,317 10,540
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

28 BEX - #ERKRE®)

(Continued)
(c) Share capital () R
Authorised and issued share capital EERDBITRAE
2014 2013
Z2-mE —E2-=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bir# A 3] Ring 8 &8
('000) HK$’000 ('000) HK$'000
(FH) FTERT (FH&) THL
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at A—A—B &k +—-A
1 January and 31 December =+-ASKRAEE
0.01 B THEmAL 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2014 2013
—Z-[mE “Z-=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
K& E & Rin&E 28
('000) HK$’000 ('000) HK$'000
T FTERT TH THL
Ordinary shares, issued and %ER - BTREE :
fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares upon placingon ~ RZZE M4 A
26 June 2014 (note (j) —HAARER
BTG (7 () 200,000 2,000 - -
Issue of shares upon placingon ~ RZ=Z—WE+A+H
7 October 2014 (note (i) RERETRAR
(K% ) 165,000 1,650 - -
1,365,000 13,650 1,000,000 10,000
Equivalent to (RMB'000) BERARETT) 11,053 8,135
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(©

Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

On 26 June 2014, an aggregate of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued to not less than six placees, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties, at
a price of HK$0.8 per share. The net proceeds would be retained
for capital expenditure to increase production capacity of the
Group’s products and as general working capital of the Group.
The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.

On 7 October 2014, an aggregate of 165,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued to not less than six placees, who
and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third
parties, at a price of HK$0.93 per share. The net proceeds would
be retained for capital expenditure to increase production capacity
of the Group’s products, potential merger and acquisitions should
appropriate opportunities arise and where the Directors considers
it in the interest of the Group to do so, and as general working
capital of the Group. The shares issued rank pari passu with other
shares in issue in all respects.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(©)

28 B - HERKRE ®)

e&NE )
EERDRTRE(Z)
et -

0 RZE-—WFERAZ+XRHE &F
200,000,000 & & f% 0.01 7 7T E @A E
ZEHE08ETZERETTIINAS
AN (RERAEKRERRB AREL
E=77) c MIBFRFELERERER
FXARAAREBER 2 EEERN AR
AEE —REEES - BEITRORN
METEEAMERTRNZESRE

(ii) RZZ—-—WmF+A+LH A&
165,000,000 % & A% 0.01 78 7T % i@ A 2
RER0.9BEBILZERETTFRINN
FAEA (RERERREREFTARE
NEZTT) c MRFIRFESERERE
ARSXARFAREBER 2 EERE
BEGE(HEEEREREESRAR
HEREEFGER) ARAEBZ —RE
BED - MBTRONAETEERM
EEITRNZESFAER -

FEMENRE®

i ROBE
& m B AN A BRI AR (5 E B
HLEITAR A R FTUCER FT 15
FIE 2 R EEE -

RIFFEHERANE  ARF
Pty ERANESATHD K
FARBHBRR - HEEEER
DIRECE B HR - ARARZARE
MEN —REH BRI HIN
&7 o

EBFEZERABRAR
“EB-EFR
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)
(i

(iii)

©)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to statutory general reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB327,425,000 (2013: RMB108,340,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.005 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.004) (2013: HK$0.013 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.0103)) per ordinary share,
amounting to RMB5,409,000 (2013: RMB10,317,000).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

end

of reporting period.

* UABRHESR)

28 EX - @BEERRE (@)

(d)

EEEENE R E)

(i)

(iii)

RS

PE X BB IEIAARE AN
M EH BB LM BRI E®R
RITEEMMAEINEZE - %
BEIYREMF2MENE
TR -

EEMEE
BREENERERBIEAER
1R TIAR B AR R P BR Bl R AR B
VA B2 7K 22 R 7E o B S 0 B /B
NEIMEBERMAETT X
EEARESESHE -

IR HTE A BRI 10% /)
BREEaM(EDREPES
FRARBOEE) E—RE
ERE BEERFEAETR
BEARBS0% A1 - BRERE
BT AIRR R 7 IRAE B RTHETT ©

—BOEERBAI AR BERT
FEBR(NE)  Lr@Ens
BRERA  EABEERERNE
MTSERTTME R 25% -

A] 73 Ik % 1

AIAAR AR RS

DIk 2 (AR

B ARE327,4250000 (=& —
£ AR%108,340,0007T) °

RBEHRE - EFEEH

R EE R

BEREBAL0.0057% T (HHE R
AR#0.00470)(ZZF—=%F : 0.013
BT (HERHAREOQ. 01037‘1)) '

& H AR #5,409,0007T (=

£ ARM10,317,0007T) - RiRE

HIR - RS

| ) AR AR T BB 7%?%1 °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and short-term bank loans that
arise in the course of ordinary business are not regarded
by the Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of
capital employed by the Group at 31 December 2014
were RMB797,342,000 (2013: RMB477,172,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment
of certain covenants as disclosed in note 25(c), neither
the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements in either prior or
current year.

F UABRHESR)

28 B - HERKRE ®)

(M

BEARER
AEBEEEEANTZEHIZEFE B
[RBRFZE UC A 2= i R AR TS TE (B B
BIESEKRARGRE  REASLE
SIERBNEE D - AME H el B A%
R REIMHR L AHERFE BT

o

RERE [EX] EEABIEMARE
=E e ZK&.E*%AWZ@&EF‘F
ERE SR R ERITE R HAR
BER o R HAE ZK%@E’;\_

—MNE+ZA=+—REBEMNELS
A AR B797,342,000L( = &
—=fF : AR#¥477,172,0007C) °

AEBEREEARE  UBERER
PR MR EER - ZEEMAT LR
BEEMEEME2ERNLRAESR
E’J%%ﬁ“&fﬂj C URFEARBENK
BN S B EANRIBRETTIHE -

7R PPN RE25(c) T IR ER B 5 T 22
MERITEEIN REFEHARF
B ARBSHAFIMERRHBEAE
SMERFEINE AT K




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)

NN R RS E D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB HETRI » LA REZT)

29 COMMITMENTS 29 &I
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 @ RULZFLRETB B%%:z AEN
December 2014 not provided for in these EHBERENR T —MF
consolidated financial statements were as +ZH=+—H ﬁ KREZE
follows: BEREENT -
The Group
xEE
2014 2013
—E—mE —=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Contracted for 2ET4 124,469 30,240
Authorised but not contracted for BRIEBERTY - -
124,469 30,240
(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future b)) RZZT—WF+—HA="1—
minimum lease payments under non- H BERAZERTEENR
cancellable operating leases in respect of TR ARG HAET
rental of offices and retail shops are AEENREFEEENK
repayable as follows: MEEANR
The Group
*KHE
2014 2013
—E—MmE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBET T
Within 1 year —FR 1,284 818
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERAFNR 208 62
1,492 880
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five BO—RNFTRB—FERFIE
years, with an option to renew when all terms are ARATBGREFNENRES - 2%
renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent HOE I BERAES -
rentals.
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8,
9, 15, 20 and 23 of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant related party
transactions during the years presented.

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

During the years presented, the directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following
entity:

30

EXREBAIRS

Bt S BmAMES 915 20K
3P BEHIRARE T B RSN - AR BERPR
FEALTIIERN@E RS

(@)

Name of party Relationships

RS B8 [ ]EA

B8 Bk U7 4 T I B B e 5 A9
A%

RIRFE  EFRE - FEEHH
BT 04 5 -

Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.

Development Company Limited (“Jiupengxi”) Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
BN RERREERAERETAF REEEHINFLE QT o

(ThESZE D REBER/ARAES -
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. (“Lvyuan”) An associate of the Group.
AFFIRESAERAR ([HIR]) REEZEE QT

The English translation of the name is for reference only.
The official name of these related parties is in Chinese.

RXERERZE  WEEBHINE
ABREBARORE -

AEFELRERAT
e
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXBEARSZ #)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(o) Significant related party transactions (b) EXBE IS
Particulars of significant related party transactions during FIRFERNERBE T ZH0FED
the years presented are as follows: ~:
2014 2013
—Z—{mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan 4R IHE RRL S 10,256 -
Sales of wooden products to and contract [A] 118 % #4& AR &3 &
revenue of outdoor wooden products RENBELINRE SR
projects derived from Jiupengxi IH B A4 7,474 7,323
The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase EERR LHMEERSINEFE
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar to B = A AU BIGEHETL

those with third parties.

(¢) Amounts due from/(to) a related company ) FEU(FER) B QAR
Jiz|
RMB’000
AREFIT
Amount due from/(to) Jiupengxi FEW,(FEST) W& RIE
Balance at R
— 1 January 2013 ——ZT—=%—H—H 724
— 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 - —ZEZ—=%+-A=+—H
k=T—MF—F—H 6,155
— 31 December 2014 — 2N+ A=1+—H (283)
Maximum balance outstanding SESP NP s
— during 2014 —RZZE—MNF 14,068
— during 2013 —RZE—=F 6,155
The amount due from/(to) a related company was arisen Rt ( JEH ) AR FIBTYRE —
from normal sales transactions. It was unsecured, BMIHER S - % ERBEREEF - %
interest-free and expected to be settled according to £ &?Eﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ =T RUEIE

credit term which is similar to that with third parties. FRGRRIE LS o
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

30 EXBEARS ©)

(d)

EIRE A B
AEBTZEEEEAB(BEWIES
Fr#t R MBI AR B EF A FIA R
HOMEBMNETEaTMES) H
B -

2014 2013
—Z—mE =4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Short-term employee benefits %E HiEERF 2,915 1,840
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEIE R 49 47
2,964 1,887

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the
transactions with Jiupengxi above (note 30(b)) constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

REFBTETATEIARA] (R
6(b) °

RER SEA 2 FmiR Al

X EE AR EIT 2 B RS
(M 3E300 ))%ﬁﬁztﬁﬂﬁﬁusﬁmﬁ
REZRER HNIBEMERS -

AEFELRERAT
e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b ZBETII + UAREZT)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 15 to 60 days of credit to
export sales customers with good trading history and
offers 1 to 3 months of credit to the existing domestic
sales customers. Generally, debtors with significant
overdue balances are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

31

cRIRREERATE

EARKENEREBBRETEELEER
B ABESAR - MEER - ERER -
?ﬁﬂﬂ{ﬁ¢%ﬂ &%%&J—WM

AEBAPAENHERRIASEEE L
ZSRBMARACHEAREBRERENR
XL

(@) EERER
AEENEERBRIERBESRE
M EUGRIBIARIR & MRS EHEY) -
ERECHITEEBR  WREER
FrE SR S EERR o

AEENRS KRS SEDETAE
BERAHEBEEIANIELH
AR -

HEHREMBEURFIENS @ AEEH
BEZRNMEPHEEEY BN
Ko OEEMSs  AEEATE
KA MEER AN ERENERE
(%%?mﬁﬁiﬂﬁm%ﬁﬁ ) 4

c REMYMBERETEERE
Wﬁ%ﬁﬁ@Lﬁ“ﬂ% FE - TR
TEHEIREE P EITERIE AT -
I EFHEEFNE BT MR H L
U RERINS MRS g E R
BEPREEERARE P& E
KEOFIRIE - ARBEMARNE SR
W AEEREPRE 15260885
EHRHBREENHEEREPRE1E
SEAMEEMS - —RME - HERE

F@HE - EE kS ERBGEN
BREEES  TRERE—PHE
B-—RhE A5ELTEEEFE
ESHEIRR o
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& BTSSR M e

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

@)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of entrusted loans receivables, the Group
assesses the credit quality of each entrusted loan
borrower before granting any new entrusted loans. The
Group has also assessed the financial ability of the
entrusted loan borrower to determine the recoverability of
the entrusted loan receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2014,
3% (2013: 1%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and 6%
(2013: 22%), was due from the five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

F UABRHESR)

31 eREREERATFE®E

(@)

EERER )

MR B ERFIE R ERA - A&EH
HEBRRAERFEEREERER
AZEEEER - REENSFHERR
ERERAZ TR A E RIS
AEFNHERR 2 AJREIEE -

AEBEFREENEERR  TBXE
BEPWERSEMATZE  MALIEKRE

BPEEMNTESMENER - B
I EAREEEEEREFHENRR
o HEESESETHNEERR - 0

—mF+ZA=+—H EB5K
HipERREBELZETBEI%(ZE
—=F 1%) REBAEBREREP
BIRER Me%(—T— =4 :22%)
Al BB ARE SRR -

A B RS B R R A HIBR ()
BEREEER  SHEREENGRAY
Bk R ROBREI{E © A5 B3 AF
HEA S EAEEERBRAER

ERASERE S RUFIEARNE
ERBME - T E(CHE - SRMHE
20 °

MEE DR
AEENBRATHERLRBES
BR - BRGABERZONRE - U
HRA R EER RHOR DB R
IESHMBBREERNAHER
wOEMBRAESRRERDES
Fie -
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

31 SREREERAFEEE)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBERR &)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRFANAEERARRFEITETR
maturities at 31 December 2014 of the Group’s and the BERA-Z—NFE+_A=+—HHK
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are FrAHEAE - ZemBEHER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including SHARMBRERE(BEEHAEL
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if Rk (W)F &) PG BRETH
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting EEERF B AR AEE KA
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company NAREREERFTEENREAH
are required to settle these liabilities. Mmet&E o
The Group REH
2014
—Z-mE
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than less than  undiscounted amount at
demand 2years 5 years cash flow 31 December
—ERE Bid-% BlzE TR R+=B=t+-R
BEX BIRZE BOREE  RERENE HIEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT IN:3 S IN:3 S ARBTT IN:3 S
Bank loans and interest BIERR8fEE 355,791 14,439 59,523 429,753 413,096
bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE 19,356 = = 19,356 19,356
375,147 14,439 59,523 449,109 432,452
2013
“E-ZF
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted amount at
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow 31 December
—ERg BE—F RB=F ANRER RTZA=T-R
BEX BARZE ESREE  ReNEER MR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ANRETTR AREFT ANRETT ANREFT
Bank loans and interest FTERRETERE 244,900 3,964 24,810 273,674 264,748
bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 23,937 - - 23,937 23,937
268,837 3,964 24,810 297,611 288,685
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

31 EREREERAFE S

VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENEERRR )
The Company VNN
2014
~2-mE
Within More than More than Total Balance
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual sheet
oron less than less than  undiscounted carrying
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—ERE g% Bl_F HESES 3] BERRZ
BEX BORZE BORLE RenEdE HEEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
IN: S AB®TR N S N S ABRTR
Other payables EftERFA 2,409 - - 2,409 2,409
Interest bearing borrowings iEEE 789 789 16,567 18,145 15,778
3,198 789 16,567 20,554 18,187
2013
—F—=
Total
Within contractual Balance sheet
1 year or on undiscounted carrying
demand cash flow amount
—F A HESENEES BEABRD
BEK MEeERELTE FREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTT
Other payables H b FE A FRIE 1,179 1,179 1,179
(©) Interest rate risk (©) FI= =\

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at

.

AREBEHNEEREZRAER &2
T BN K [EE R BB KD R

fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

RAEEGERBADREMNERER KA
FEMERERE - MEREAHREES A
LB EMRER T () °

AEFELRERAT
e
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

(BBFHTI - UAREZT)

EEEMREER AFE R

VALUES (continued)
(©) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) A==z
() Interest rate profile i)  RRARR
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRHFN_Z-—WHE+A
the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December 2014: =t+—HEREBEEFLENF
AR
2014 2013
—Z-mE —Z-=f
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
1tk 3] BRAI= 8
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
IN: S AR®EFT
Fixed rate borrowings:  ER{EE:
RMB, Euros and USD ARE BIEET 1.54%- 177,912 0.78%- 139,580
bank loans RITER 7.80% 7.80%
Unsecured debentures ERRES 5% 15,778 - -
Variable rate borrowings: ZE {8 :
RMB and USD bank loans ARERETRITER 1.23%- 219,406 1.51%- 125,168
8.05% 8.53%
Total net borrowings EETEE 413,096 264,748
Net fixed rate borrowings as ~ E B EZUREE(L &
a percentage of total net BIFEMED L
borrowings 47% 53%
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) SWBEDF

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general

increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest

rates, with all other variables held constant, would

have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,865,000 (2013: RMB1,064,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected by the

changes in interest rates.

RZE—EHF+ZA=+—
A - A B SR T &
WIERT  FIREE AT
FE100E B et 2 B8R %
[ 1 bR A5 18 5 ) B2 AR B s TR
S 4 A R #1,865,000
T(ZE—ZF: ARK
1,064,0007T ) ° # & B H fth &0

SEFERELHOTE -
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F UABRHESR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

cEEMREER AR E R

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of

(©)

M 2R LB ()

(i) BBEIW(E)
FIRERE ST H AL EE
B8 A (AR B 7)) i B
ERENREE - FIRESTR
RN EEYPYREEH DL
A WERAREMGELREE
Frs At Nl EHREAREE

HEATFEMNEEROZES
BIE - iARERRERR
HAENEE #@TEIHFEE’]

i/m;ﬂ?ﬂ = £T$
%Iﬁﬁmé;ﬁﬁﬂ(&ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬂ)
WEEFEUARFEZEMm
EESTN S S AL
FeR-ZT—=Z%+_-A

such a change in interest rates. The analysis at 31 =+—8 ZoemERE
December 2013 has been performed on the same AEHETT ©
basis.
(d) Currency risk o) Er=Eb
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEEEmEHNEBRR  T2AUE

sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in USD
and Euros, currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD and Euros.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables denominated
in USD and Euros. All of the forward exchange contracts
have maturities of less than one year.

RIS UM AR E R (5
TERBIT) FHEMNEE RRE(EE
FEMRIE - BNFARBRSEHR)M
PTEMEERER

HRAEENERTIAARYE - ET
KB TTEHE - Rt A LB IR E SRR T
EFEENEEER -

FREREA - A5 E L B A K5
BIRITAILIMNEERRANEAARY
PAR A S 7T Ko BR 7T A 1H{E B 8 AR 3K
ERER - FFEEHSMNESLIMNE
S REE BIR—FLAR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had foreign currency

forward contracts with their fair values recognised as

derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB867,000
(2013: RMB2,071,000) and derivative financial
instruments (liabilities) of RMB1,247,000 (2013:
RMB222,000) and are included within “Trade and other
receivables” (note 20) and “Trade and other payables”

(note 24) respectively. The changes in fair value of the

foreign currency forward contracts were recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5(b)).

@

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
31 December 2014 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB into
the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

The Company does not have any significant financial
assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than its functional currency and it is not exposed to
significant currency risk.

(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

31

EEEMREER AFE R
o) EERER @

R-E—mE+-—A=+—H ' &&
BINERHAA DR A T EERARE
867,000 (=T —=ZF: AR

2,071,

0007T) APTHE SR I A (BE)

M AR 247,000 (—ZE— =4 :
AR#22200070) BHTE ST E

(BE

) - AABIEATE SR E A

WokE ] (Mi5E20) & [ 8 5 R H A fE
5RIE] (MiRE24) - SNERHEIG 49
AFEZEH IR GeEmE (M
5(b)) P HER

U]

E¥RR

TRHANAEER -_F—M4F
TZA=T—BREEERIUIE
BRI EETHERYEDN
EHEREEXREMELNE
KRk RTREZ27) AR
AARBIR - ERHEHR
MM EIE - R AARE A
SNV T BE R BIRR B0 B RE BA 7
BRVERAEENZ27EE
EEMERARI

ARELEIAEASRAE
HABEAEDREEE AN E
BiHE  TEAZEREERE

(G
AA

o
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 &£@iEREERALE &)
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥Rk )
() Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥EkE)
The Group rEH
2014 2013
ZE-mE 5=
usb Euros HKS RMB UsDh Euros HKS RMB
E o BT BT AE® e o B AR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTT ARWTR AERBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade and other E5REM
receivables fERE 36,495 45 - - 30,118 50 - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RELZEN 69,798 290 1 292 3,809 298 - 16
Bank loans BITER (196,762) - (11,834) - (In57y - - -
Trade and other BHRAM
payables EfT5R (3,330) - - = (232) - - -
Gross exposure arising ~ EERBER
from recognised BEELN
assets and liabilities B e (93,799) 335 (11,833) 292  (137,879) 348 - 16
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDN

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to

which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

Other components of equity would not be affected
by changes in the foreign exchange rates.

TFRIIFHA R AR EET
HERT - AREOBHE
R (RARE ) B A E R
AR EH RRAAR L
SHERIERBB) T1E £
BB B o EAMEMHBH K
TEIMEEE L BOTE -

AEFELRERAT
e

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)

sre MR M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ([ SBHRSN » AN BREZIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

o) E¥REP @

31 eREREERATFEE

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BWRBREI(E)
The Group rEH
2014 2013
—Z-mE “E-=F

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit

in foreign  after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

E3:8 ¥t BRAE R

SHEES REEET INEIER RREEM

A /(FR)  Er/(FR) E£AH/(TH)  EA/(TE)

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREFT

Usb e 5% (3,986) 5% (5,860)
(5)% 3,986 5)% 5,860

Euros Bt 5% 14 5% 17
(5)% (14) 5)% (17)

HK$ against RMB BTRAARE 5% (503) 5% -
(5)% 503 5)% -

RMB against HK$ ARBHBT 5% 12 5% 1
(5)% (12) (0)% (1)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2013 has been
performed on the same basis.

Commaodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group’s products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group
historically has not entered into any commaodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity price
changes. The Group monitors its commodity price risk by
widening its supply base and performs bulk purchase
when the price of raw materials is low.

F UABRHESR)

31 eREREERATFE®E

(d)

B R R )

(i) BWRBREIF(E)
FX RIS MRS EE
2B BE Y 5 B 16 3 R R A 25 1A

EEMNMEEBHERRED
B &% 3RS B R A0 B & 3 4%

XA RMEIL R BN R B 4RRE

BURE D AT R B IS [E R &)
EEAZENEAERES
MERTAE mMZzEEHMIA
RS BN I®E BRI INE
DM TBELIREINE
BUBREEAEHZIEE
Frralge IR ERE R
—=ZF+-A=+—H" 5"
EIRAR R EAERTT o

B m B E R

PR EEAEBERA B ERTE
BELARIA - AEEAEZZR
PRERBRORE - RS R
EVEISE RIS R UM AR

R E o RIMEHERHRE) A RE A
SENPBRAELETNTE - K&

BB AR ITE T ALY E
ErmEREDY AREFEEMRM
JEETE M AE R RHE R BUE B ETTHE
ERBOTAEERMERRR
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(= BIETSN » UANRIEITR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)
() Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the

Company’s financial instruments measured at the

end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy

as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The

level into which a fair value measurement is

classified is determined with reference to the

observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using

only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted

prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using

Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which falil

to meet Level 1, and not using significant

unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs

EEEMREER AFE R

h AFME

U]

BRAFEIRENSMIA
AFEERHE
TREVEREEREMEDN
NFE ZEVEREERIEZ
KEMEENE UHEARE
BB HRELERE 135 « AF
B ETEN-"HAFESR
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

()  Fair values (Continued)

@

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities amounting
to RMB867,000 and RMB1,247,000 respectively
(2013: assets and liabilities of RMB2,071,000 and
RMB222,000 respectively) (notes 20 and 24) were
carried at fair value, and these instruments fall into
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual
forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant
government yield curve as at the end of reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread.

There were no other financial assets or liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

()  Fair values (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying values of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

32 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

31
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 33

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

BE_ZF-NOF+=-A=+-—
HIEFECEMERERE
T A EARZENAESR

BENSERAMBHRREMRA  BRE
FTERBR E e B R 2 IRIERT MraT £
HRBE_ZT-—MNF+-_A=1t—HILF
ERAREN - BXRNEE T BRERAR
W ETEBETIAREEAEEEHENS
I8 :

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIAHMARS S HRER

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
BIRRE iR & BRI — E— B FE T — —F A FIEHE

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
BRI iR & BRI — E—— F R _F—=F i FIEHE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
BIFR  isd E A = F — —F F T — Y F AR F R

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation

B & 5T AR 5 16 5% S BFR & 5t 2RI 55 38 SR IE AT A
BRI ERITE R =

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BB B iSRS RIS 15 SR F FATALZ WA

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BIFRE i S ERE O mM T A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

1.July 2014
—T-mFELA—H

1.July 2014
—T-mFELA—H

1 January 2016
—E—-R"F¥—H—H

1 January 2016

—ET-R"H¥—H—H
1 January 2017
—+F—H—H

1 January 2018
—N\FE—H—H

AEEERHREGT - FDENRHT
BRI EME NS A R B B L 3T o
BB AAL - ARERS RSB
STETEBI R T R A ML 24
BB AR R EA R B AT B8R o
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 33 BE-Z—MOF+=-A=+-—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (Continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation from the company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s financial
year which began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The group is in the process of
making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it
has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.
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